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                                                                                                  Date: November 10, 2023 
 

 
 

TRANSMITTAL LETTER 
 
 
To 
The Shareholders, 
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, 
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms, 
Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited and 
Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited 
 
 
Subject: Annual Report for the year ended on June 30, 2023. 
 
 
Dear Sir(s): 
 
We are pleased to enclose a copy of the Annual Report of Apex Foods Limited together 
with the Audited Financial statements comprising of Statement of Financial Position as at 
June 30, 2023, Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement 
of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on June 30, 2023 
along with Notes thereon for your kind information and record. 
 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
 
Sd/- 
Kamrul Islam 
Company Secretary 
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NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 

Notice is hereby given that the FORTY - FOURTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the 
Shareholders of APEX FOODS LIMITED will be held virtually by using digital platform 
through link http://virtualagm.apexfoods.com  (in pursuant with BSEC order 
SEC/SRMIC/94-231/25 dated July 08, 2020) on Thursday, November 30, 2023 at 11.30 
A.M.  to transact the following businesses:  

 

AGENDA 
 
1. To receive and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended on 30 June 

2023 and report of the Auditors’ and Directors thereon. 
 
2. To declare Dividend for the year 2022-23.  

 
3. To elect Directors. 

 
4. To approve the appointment of Independent Director. 

 
5. To appoint Statutory Auditors for the year 2023-24 and fix their remuneration. 

 
6. To appoint professional for the Certification on Corporate Governance Code for the 

year 2023-24 and fix their remuneration. 
 
7. To transact any other business of the Company, with permission of the Chair. 

 
 
Place: Dhaka 
Date: November 05, 2023 

By order of the Board of Directors 
 

Sd/- 
 Kamrul Islam 

Company Secretary 
 

NOTES: 
 

1. The Shareholders whose name appeared in the Register of Members of the Company or in 
the Depository on the “Record Date i.e. October 26, 2023” are eligible to attend in the 
Annual General Meeting and be entitled to the Dividend. 

 

2. The detail login process and link of the online portal to attend the meeting will be 
communicated to the shareholders through email in due course and will be available at the 
company’s Website at: http://www.apexfoods.com. 

 

3. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint only another 
member as proxy to attend and vote in his/her stead as per para 104 of the Articles of 
Association of the Company. The “Proxy Form” duly filled in, signed and stamped, must be 
submitted at the Registered Office of the Company not later than 48 hours before the time 
fixed for the Meeting. 

 

4. Pursuant to the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission’s (BSEC) Notification No.: 
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/208/Admin/81 dated 20th June, 2018 the Annual Report 2022-23 
of the Company shall be sent to the respective e-mail address of the shareholders mentioned 
in their Beneficiary Owner (BO) Accounts with the depository. In case of non-receipt of Annual 
Report 2022-23 of the Company through e-mail, Shareholders may collect the same from 
Company’s Website at: http://www.apexfoods.com.  

 

5. In pursuance of BSEC’s Notification No.: SEC/SRMI/2000-953/1950 dated October 24, 2000 
gazette on November 07, 2000, the Company shall hold discussions in the Annual General 
Meeting strictly in conformity with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1994. 

http://virtualagm.apexfoods.com/
http://www.apexfoods.com/
http://www.apexfoods.com/
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CORPORATE DIRECTORY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
Chairman : Mr. Zahur Ahmed PhD 
Managing Director : Mr. Shahriar Ahmed 
Director : Mrs. Shawkat Ara Ahmed 
Director : Mr. Ashim Kumar Barua 
Independent Director : Mr. Tarek Nizamuddin Ahmed 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Chairman                                          : Mr. Tarek Nizamuddin Ahmed, Independent Director 

Member : Mr. Shahriar Ahmed, Managing Director 
Member : Mr. Ashim Kumar Barua, Director 

 
NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

Chairman : Mr. Tarek Nizamuddin Ahmed, Independent Director 

Member : Mr. Zahur Ahmed PhD, Chairman 
Member : Mr. Shahriar Ahmed, Managing Director 

SENIOR CORPORATE OFFICIALS 

Executive Director : Mr. Mominuddin Ahmed Khan 
Chief Financial Officer : Mrs. Sheuli Rani Dey               
Head of Internal Audit & Compliance : Mr. Ashish Kumar Paul FCA 
Company Secretary : Mr. Kamrul Islam 

 

LEGAL ADVISORS 
Abdur Razzaque & Associates  

Md. Shahjahan Khan 
 

STATUTORY AUDITORS 
M/s. Malek Siddiqui Wali 
Chartered Accountants 

 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE AUDITORS 

M/s. Shiraz Khan Basak & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

 

SCRUTINIZER OF AGM 
M/s. Shiraz Khan Basak & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
 

BANKER 
Agrani Bank Limited 

Agrabad Corporate Branch, Jahan Building  
Agrabad C/A, Chattogram 

 
REGISTERED OFFICE FACTORY 

SHANTA SKYMARK (Levels 8-13), 51-B Shagarika Road, 
18 Gulshan Avenue, Gulshan, Dhaka-1212 Fouzderhat Industrial Estate, Pahartali, 
Bangladesh. Chattogram-4219, Bangladesh. 
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FIVE YEARS STATISTICS 
                   
     Figure in Thousand Taka  
       

Particulars   2022-23 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19 

Results of Operations:      

      
Revenue  2,419,770 3,512,950 2,759,680 2,184,387 1,712,670  

Gross Profit  266,974 
 

377,598 231,157 189,858 197,054 

Operating Profit/(Loss)  106,178 106,822 91,390 85,399 96,071 

Profit before Tax 99,603 
 

77,284 48,104 36,422 38,406 

Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax 50,832 29,316 11,805 10,738 11,781 

Earnings per Share (EPS)  8.91 5.14 2.07 1.88  2.07  

Dividend Per Share* 2.00 2.00 2.00 1.50 2.00 

Financial Positions:      

      
Total Assets 1,164,979 

 
 
 

1,239,984 1,453,953 1,714,463 1,682,611 

Property, Plant and Equipment-Gross 764,692 749,849 732,112 725,427 710,997 

Property, Plant and Equipment-Net  76,112 77,439 74,650 84,414 88,988 

Gross Working Capital 742,719 836,087 1,074,803 1,315,229 1,256,464 

Net Working Capital 393,918 369,229 337,906 326,994 325,898 

Working Capital Loan 1,691 312,870 596,148 754,195 744,293 

Share Capital  57,024 57,024 57,024 57,024 57,024 

Share Premium 209,088 209,088 209,088 209,088 209,088 

Reserve and Surplus  245,171 
 
 

205,744 187,833 184,581 185,248 

Share Holders’ Equity       776,689     719,541        680,799      687,905      709,206 

Long Term Loan  - - 5,614 5,232 2,363 

Key Financial Ratios:      

      
Current Ratio 2.13 1.79 1.46 1.33 1.35 

Debt to Total Assets (%) 33.33 41.97 53.18 59.88 57.85 

Return on Equity (%) 6.54 4.07 1.73 1.56 1.66 

Net Assets Value Per Share 136.20 126.18 119.39 120.63 124.37 

Dividend Payout Ratio (%)  22.45 38.90 96.61 79.66 96.81 

Interest Service Coverage Ratio 6.80           4.25              1.86            1.19            1.24 

Others:      

      
Market Price Per Share (30th June) 428.80 181.90 124.70 120.10 175.60 

Price Earning Multiple 13.47 35.39 60.24   63.88  84.83 

Number of Employees (Including contract labor) 465 606 454     533    465 

Capacity Utilization (%) 22.54 38.85 36.53 30.00 25.49 

 
* The Board of Directors recommended Cash Dividend @Tk. 2.00/- per Share for the year ended on 
30th June 2023. 
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Annexure-A 
MD & CFO’s Declaration to the Board of Directors 

 
Date: October 03, 2023  

The Board of Directors 
Apex Foods Limited 
SHANTA SKYMARK (Levels 8-13) 
18 Gulshan Avenue, Gulshan 
Dhaka-1212, Bangladesh. 
 
Subject: Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended on June 30, 2023 
 
Dear Sirs, 
 
Pursuant to the condition No. 1(5)(xxvi) imposed vide the Commission’s Notification No.: 
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated June 03, 2018 under section 2CC of the 
Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969, we do hereby declare that: 
 

(1) The Financial Statements of Apex Foods Limited for the year ended on June 30, 2023 
have been prepared in compliance with International Accounting Standards (IASs) and 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), and any departure from there has 
been adequately disclosed; 

(2) The estimates and judgements related to the financial statements were made on a 
prudent and reasonable basis, in order for the financial statements to reveal a true and 
fair view; 

(3) The form and substance of transactions and the Company’s state of affairs have been 
reasonably and fairly presented in its financial statements; 

(4) To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a 
system of internal control and maintenance of accounting records; 

 
(5) Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance 

that the established policies and procedures of the Company were consistently 
followed; and  

 
(6) The management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the 

financial statements is appropriate and there exists no material uncertainty related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. 
 

In this regard, we also certify that: - 
(i) We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on June 30, 2023 and 

that to the best of our knowledge and belief: 
 
(a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 

material fact or contain statements that might be misleading; 
(b) these statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company’s affairs 

and are in compliance with existing accounting standards and applicable laws. 
 

(ii) These are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 
Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of 
conduct for the company’s Board of Directors or its members. 

 
Sincerely yours, 
           
Sd/- Sd/- 
Shahriar Ahmed 
Managing Director 

Sheuli Rani Dey 
Chief Financial Officer  



SHIRAZ KHAI{ BASAK & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
(fln associate firm of A. N. Qupta {,,Associates)

' , (LEVEL-IO&6)
86, Bir ljttar:r:r C.R. I)atta R-oad
(312, Sonargaon Road), Dhaka-12O5-I'el :88-O2-9635139.88-02-9673597
Mobile : 07 552-575775, Ol7 1 1 -52O77O

o 7 922- | t7 37 0 - O 1. 7 57 -94.7 437
o t3 1 2-507(]7 6- O 77 7 1-53588s
o | 645 -7 3a7 47, O | 920-7 )- 9463

E-rnail : shirazkhanbasak(z)yahoo.com
WeLrsite : www. shirazkhanbasak.bd. corn

Chaity
Partner
Shiraz Khan Basak & Co.

Chartered Accountants

REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF APEX FOOD LTD .COMPLIANCE ON

THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

We have examined the compliance status to the Corporate Governance Code by Apex Food
Limited. for the year ended on 30 ]une 2023. This Code relates to the Notification No.Compliance of
Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 03 ]une 2018 issued under section

2CC of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission.

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is the responsibility of the Company. Our

examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by the Management in
ensuring compliance to the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code.

This is a scrutiny and verification and an independent audit on compliance of the conditions of the

Corporate Governance Code as well as the provisions of relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards

(BSS) as adopted by Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those

standards are not inconsistent with any condition of this Corporate Governance Code.

-We 
stare that we have obtained all the information and explanations, which we have required, and after

due scrutiny and verification thereof, we report that, in our opinion:

(a) The Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code as stipulated

in the above mentioned Corporate Governance Code issued by the Commission;

(b) The Company has complied with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards

(BSS) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) as required by
this Code;

(c) Proper books and records have been kept by the company as required under the

Companies Act,1994, the securities laws and other relevant laws; and

(d) The Governance of the company is satisfactory.

Dated: October 19 ,2023
Place: Dhaka

Siraka

S

S
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Annexure-C 
 

Corporate Governance Code Compliance Status 
 
 

Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange 
Commission’s Notification No.: BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 03 June 2018 issued 
under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969. 
 

(Report under Condition No. 9) 
Condition 

No. 
 

 
Title 

Compliance Status 
(Put √ in the 

appropriate column) 

 
Remarks 
(if any) 

Complied 
Not 

complied 

     1. Board of Directors 

1(1) Board ‘s Size shall not be less than 5 and more than 20    

1(2) Independent Directors 

1(2)(a) 
Independent Director(s) - at least one fifth (1/5) of the total 
number of directors 

 

  

1(2)(b)(i) 
Independent director does not hold any share or holds less than 
one percent (1%) shares of total paid up capital 

 
  

1(2)(b)(ii) 

Independent director is not a sponsor of the company or is not 
connected with the company’s any sponsor or director or 
nominated director or shareholder of the company or any of its 
associates, sister concerns, subsidiaries and parents or holding 
entities who holds one percent (1%) or more shares of the total 
paid-up shares of the company on the basis of family 
relationship and his or her family members also shall not hold 
above mentioned shares in the company 

 

  

1(2)(b)(iii) 
Independent director has not been an executive of the company 
in immediately preceding 2 (two) financial years 

 
  

1(2)(b)(iv) 
Independent director does not have any other relationship, 
whether pecuniary or otherwise, with the company or its 
subsidiary or associated companies 

 

  

1(2)(b)(v) 
Independent director is not member or TREC holder, director or 
officer of any stock exchange 

 
  

1(2)(b)(vi) 
Independent director is not a shareholder, director excepting 
independent director or officer of any member or TREC holder 
of stock exchange or an intermediary of the capital market 

 

  

1(2)(b)(vii) 

Independent director is not a partner or an executive or was not 
a partner or an executive during the preceding 3 (three) years of 
the concerned company’s statutory audit firm or audit firm 
engaged in internal audit services or audit firm conducting 
special audit or professional certifying compliance of this Code 

 

  

1(2)(b)(viii) 
Independent director is not independent director in more than 5 
(five) listed companies 

 

 He is also an 
Independent Director 
of Apex Spinning & 
Knitting Mills Limited 

1(2)(b)(ix) 

Independent director has not been convicted by a court of 
competent jurisdiction as a defaulter in payment of any loan or 
any advance to a bank or a Non-Bank Financial Institution 
(NBFI) 

 

 

Not Applicable 

1(2)(b)(x) 
Independent director has not been convicted for a criminal 
offence involving moral turpitude 

 
 

Not Applicable 

1(2)(c) 
The independent director(s) shall be appointed by the Board 
and approved by the Shareholders in the AGM 

 

 Appointed on 05-04-
2023 by the Board and 
shall be approved in the 
ensuing AGM. 
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Condition 
No. 

 

 
Title 

Compliance Status 
(Put √ in the 

appropriate column) 

 
Remarks 
(if any) 

Complied 
Not 

complied 

     
1(2)(d) 

The post of independent director(s) cannot remain vacant for 
more than 90 days                                                                                                    

 
 

Not Applicable 

1(2)(e) 
The tenure of office of an Independent Directors shall be for a 
period of 3 (three) years which may be extended for 1 (one) 
tenure only 

 

  

1(3) Qualification of Independent Director 

1(3)(a) 

Independent Director shall be a knowledgeable individual with 
integrity who is able to ensure compliance with financial, 
regulatory and corporate laws and can make meaningful 
contribution to business 

 

 No need to Comply 

1(3)(b)(i) 

Business Leader who is or was a promoter or director of an 
unlisted company having minimum paid-up capital of Tk. 100.00 
million or any listed company or a member of any national or 
international chamber of commerce or business association 

 

 

No need to Comply 

1(3)(b)(ii) 

Corporate Leader who is or was a top level executive not lower 
than Chief Executive Officer or Managing Director or Deputy 
Managing Director or Chief Financial Officer or Head of Finance 
or Accounts or Company Secretary or Head of Internal Audit 
and Compliance or Head of Legal Service or a candidate with 
equivalent position of an unlisted company having minimum 
paid up capital of Tk. 100.00 million or of a listed company 

 

 

No need to Comply 

1(3)(b)(iii) 

Former official of government or statutory or autonomous or 
regulatory body in the position not below 5th Grade of the 
national pay scale, who has at least educational background of 
bachelor degree in economics or commerce or business or law 

 

 

 

1(3)(b)(iv) 
University Teacher who has educational background in 
Economics or Commerce or Business Studies or Law 

  No need to Comply 

1(3)(b)(v) 

Professional who is or was an advocate practicing at least in the 
High Court Division of Bangladesh Supreme Court or a 
Chartered Accountant or Cost and Management Accountant or 
Chartered Financial Analyst or Chartered Certified Accountant 
or Certified Public Accountant or Chartered Management 
Accountant or Chartered Secretary or equivalent qualification 

  No need to Comply 

1(3)(c) 
The independent director shall have at least 10 (ten) years of 
experiences in any field mentioned in clause (b) 

 
 

 

1(3)(d) 
In special cases, the above qualifications or experiences may 
be relaxed subject to prior approval of the Commission 

  
Not Applicable 

1(4) Duality of Chairperson of the Board of Directors and Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer 

1(4)(a) 
The positions of the Chairperson of the Board and the 
Managing Director (MD) and/or Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 
of the company shall be filled by different individuals 

   

1(4)(b) 
The Managing Director (MD) and/or Chief Executive Officer 
(CEO) of a listed company shall not hold the same position in 
another listed company 

   

1(4)(c) 
The Chairperson of the Board shall be elected from among the 
non-executive directors of the company 

   

1(4)(d) 
The Board shall clearly define respective roles and 
responsibilities of the Chairperson and the Managing Director 
and/or Chief Executive Officer 

   

1(4)(e) 

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Board, the remaining 
members may elect one of themselves from non-executive 
directors as Chairperson for that particular Board’s meeting; the 
reason of absence of the regular Chairperson shall be duly 
recorded in the minutes. 

  
No such incident was 
occurred during this 
year. 

1(5) The Directors’ Report to Shareholders 

1(5)(i) An industry outlook and possible future developments in the industry    

1(5)(ii) The Segment-wise or product-wise performance    
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Condition 
No. 

 

 
Title 

Compliance Status 
(Put √ in the 

appropriate column) 

 
Remarks 
(if any) 

Complied 
Not 

complied 

     

1(5)(iii) 
Risks and concerns including internal and external risk factors, 
threat to sustainability and negative impact on environment, if 
any 

 

 Detail discussion are 
given in Directors 
analysis.  
 

1(5)(iv) 
A discussion on Cost of Goods Sold, Gross Profit Margin and 
Net Profit Margin, where applicable 

 
  

1(5)(v) 
A discussion on continuity of any extraordinary activities and 
their implications (gain or loss) 

 
  

1(5)(vi) 

A detailed discussion on related party transactions along with a 
statement showing amount, nature of related party, nature of 
transactions and basis of transactions of all related party 
transactions; 

 

 
See note 44 of 
audited financial 
statements  

1(5)(vii) 
A statement of utilization of proceeds raised through public 
issues, rights issues and/or any other instruments 

  

No such incident was 
occurred during the 
year. 1(5)(viii) 

An explanation if the financial results deteriorate after the 
company goes for Initial Public Offering (IPO), Repeat Public 
Offering (RPO), Rights Share Offer, Direct Listing, etc. 

  

1(5)(ix) 
An explanation on any significant variance that occurs between 
Quarterly Financial performances and Annual Financial 
Statements 

 

  
N/A 

1(5)(x) 
A statement of remuneration paid to the directors including 
independent directors 

 
 See note 35 of 

audited financial 
statements 

1(5)(xi) 

A statement that the financial statements prepared by the 
management of the issuer company present fairly its state of 
affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in 
equity 

 

  

1(5)(xii) 
A statement that proper books of account of the issuer company 
have been maintained 

 
  

1(5)(xiii) 

A statement that appropriate accounting policies have been 
consistently applied in preparation of the financial statements 
and that the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and 
prudent judgment 

 

  

1(5)(xiv) 

A statement that International Accounting Standards (IAS) or 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as 
applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation of 
the financial statements and any departure there from has been 
adequately disclosed 

   

1(5)(xv) 
A statement that the system of internal control is sound in 
design and has been effectively implemented and monitored 

   

1(5)(xvi) 

A statement that minority shareholders have been protected 
from abusive actions by, or in the interest of, controlling 
shareholders acting either directly or indirectly and have 
effective means of redress 

   

1(5)(xvii) 

A statement that there is no significant doubt upon the issuer 
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, if the issuer 
company is not considered to be a going concern, the fact along 
with reasons there of shall be disclosed 

   

1(5)(xviii) 
An explanation that significant deviations from the last year’s 
operating results of the issuer company shall be highlighted and 
the reasons thereof shall be explained 

   

1(5)(xix) 
A statement where key operating and financial data of at least 
preceding 5 (five) years shall be summarized 

  
Please see note 
page 30 (xix) 

1(5)(xx) 
An explanation on the reasons if the issuer company has not 
declared dividend (cash or stock) for the year 

  
Not Applicable  

1(5)(xxi) 
Board’s statement to the effect that no bonus share or stock 
dividend has been or shall be declared as interim dividend 

 
 

Not Applicable  
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Condition 
No. 

 

 
Title 

Compliance Status 
(Put √ in the 

appropriate column) 

 
Remarks 
(if any) 

Complied 
Not 

complied 

     
1(5)(xxii) 

The total number of Board meetings held during the year and 
attendance by each director 

   

1(5)(xxiii) 
A report on the pattern of shareholding disclosing the aggregate number of shares (along with name-wise 
details where stated below) held by: 

1(5)(xxiii)(a) 
Parent or Subsidiary or Associated Companies and other 
related parties (name-wise details) 

 
  

1(5)(xxiii)(b) 
Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief 
Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit and Compliance and 
their spouses and minor children (name-wise details) 

 
  

1(5)(xxiii)(c) Shareholding pattern of Executives    

1(5)(xxiii)(d) 
Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more voting interest 
in the company (name-wise details) 

 
  

1(5)(xxiv) 
In case of appointment or re-appointment of a Director, a disclosure on the following information to the 
Shareholders: 

1(5)(xxiv)(a) A brief resume of the director    

1(5)(xxiv)(b) Nature of his or her expertise in specific functional areas    

1(5)(xxiv)(c) 
Names of companies in which the person also holds the 
directorship and the membership of committees of the board 

 
  

1(5)(xxv) 
A Management’s Discussion and Analysis signed by CEO or MD presenting detailed analysis of the 
company’s position and operations along with a brief discussion of changes in the financial statements, 
among others, focusing on: 

1(5)(xxv)(a) 
Accounting policies and estimation for preparation of 
financial statements 

 
  

1(5)(xxv)(b) 

Changes in accounting policies and estimation, if any, clearly 
describing the effect on financial performance or results and 
financial position as well as cash flows in absolute figure for 
such changes 

 

 No such incident 
occurred during the 
year. 

1(5)(xxv)(c) 

Comparative analysis (including effects of inflation) of 
financial performance or results and financial position as well 
as cash flows for current financial year with immediate 
preceding five years explaining reasons thereof 

 

  

1(5)(xxv)(d) 
Compare such financial performance or results and financial 
position as well as cash flows with the peer industry scenario 

 
  

1(5)(xxv)(e) 
Briefly explain the financial and economic scenario of the 
country and the globe 

 
  

1(5)(xxv)(f) 
Risks and concerns issues related to the financial 
statements, explaining such risk and concerns mitigation 
plan of the company 

 

  

1(5)(xxv)(g) 

Future plan or projection or forecast for company’s 
operation, performance and financial position, with 
justification thereof, i.e., actual position shall be explained to 
the shareholders in the next AGM 

 

  

1(5)(xxvi) 
Declaration or certification by the CEO and the CFO to the 
Board as required under condition No. 3(3) shall be 
disclosed as per Annexure-A 

 

  

1(5)(xxvii) 
The report as well as certificate regarding compliance of 
conditions of this Code as required under condition No. 9 
shall be disclosed as per Annexure-B and Annexure-C 

 

  

1(6) 

The company shall conduct its Board meetings and record 
the minutes of the meetings as well as keep required books 
and records in line with the provisions of the relevant 
Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by the 
Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so 
far as those standards are not inconsistent with any 
condition of this Code 

  
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     1(7) Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer: 

1(7)(a) 

The Board shall lay down a code of conduct, based on the 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee (NRC) at condition No. 6, for the Chairperson of 
the Board, other board members and Chief Executive Officer 
of the company 

   

1(7)(b) 

The code of conduct as determined by the NRC shall be 
posted on the website of the company including, among 
others, prudent conduct and behavior; confidentiality; conflict 
of interest; compliance with laws, rules and regulations; 
prohibition of insider trading; relationship with environment, 
employees, customers and suppliers; and independency. 

  

 

2. Governance of Board of Directors of Subsidiary Company: 

2(a) 
Provisions relating to the composition of the Board of the 
holding company shall be made applicable to the 
composition of the Board of the subsidiary company 

  

Not Applicable 
 

Entity don’t have any 
subsidiary company. 

2(b) 
At least 1 (one) independent director on the Board of the 
holding company shall be a director on the Board of the 
subsidiary company 

  

2(c) 
The minutes of the Board meeting of the subsidiary company 
shall be placed for review at the following Board meeting of 
the holding company 

  

2(d) 
The minutes of the respective Board meeting of the holding 
company shall state that they have reviewed the affairs of 
the subsidiary company also 

  

2(e) 
The Audit Committee of the holding company shall also 
review the financial statements, in particular the investments 
made by the subsidiary company 

  

3. 
Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Head of 
Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC) and Company Secretary (CS): 

3(1) Appointment 

3(1)(a) 

The Board shall appoint a Managing Director (MD) or Chief 
Executive Officer (CEO), a Company Secretary (CS), a 
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and a Head of Internal Audit 
and Compliance (HIAC) 

   

3(1)(b) 

The positions of the Managing Director (MD) or Chief 
Executive Officer (CEO), Company Secretary (CS), Chief 
Financial Officer (CFO) and Head of Internal Audit and 
Compliance (HIAC) shall be filled by different individuals 

   

3(1)(c) 
The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of a listed company 
shall not hold any executive position in any other company 
at the same time 

   

3(1)(d) 
The Board shall clearly define respective roles, 
responsibilities and duties of the CFO, the HIAC and the CS 

   

3(1)(e) 

The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC shall not be removed 
from their position without approval of the Board as well as 
immediate dissemination to the Commission and stock 
exchange(s) 

   

3(2) Requirement to attend Board of Directors’ Meetings: 

 
The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of the company shall 
attend the meetings of the Board 

 
  

3(3) 
Duties of Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer 
(CFO): 

3(3)(a) 
The MD or CEO and CFO shall certify to the Board that 
they have reviewed financial statements for the year and 
that to the best of their knowledge and belief: 

 
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3(3)(a)(i) 
These statements do not contain any materially untrue 
statement or omit any material fact or contain statements 
that might be misleading; and 

 

  

3(3)(a)(ii) 
These statements together present a true and fair view of 
the company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing 
accounting standards and applicable laws; 

 
  

3(3)(b) 

The MD or CEO and CFO shall also certify that there are, to 
the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered 
into by the company during the year which are fraudulent, 
illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the 
company’s Board or its members; 

 

  

3(3)(c) 
The certification of the MD or CEO and CFO shall be 
disclosed in the Annual Report.  

  

4. Board of Directors’ Committee:    

 
For ensuring good governance in the company, the Board 
shall have at least following subcommittees: 

   

4(i) Audit Committee; and    

4(ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee.    

5. Audit Committee: 

5(1) Responsibility to the Board of Directors:    

5(1)(a) Audit Committee as a sub-committee of the Board    

5(1)(b) 

The Audit Committee shall assist the Board in ensuring that 
the financial statements reflect true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the company and in ensuring a good 
monitoring system within the business; 

 

  

5(1)(c) 
The Audit Committee shall be responsible to the Board; the 
duties of the Audit Committee shall be clearly set forth in 
writing. 

 

  

5.2 Constitution of the Audit Committee: 

5(2)(a) 
The Audit Committee shall be composed of at least 3 (three) 
members 

 
  

5(2)(b) 

The Board shall appoint members of the Audit Committee 
who shall be nonexecutive directors of the company 
excepting Chairperson of the Board and shall include at 
least 1 (one) Independent Director; 

  

Two members of the 
Committee is 
executive.  

5(2)(c) 

All members of the audit committee should be “financially 
literate” and at least 1(one) member shall have accounting or 
related financial management background and 10 (ten) years of 
such experience; 

 

  

5(2)(d) 
Casual Vacancy of the Audit Committee fill up immediately or 
not later than 1 (one) month from the date of vacancy; 

  No such incident was 
occurred 

5(2)(e) 
The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the 
Committee; 

 
  

5(2)(f) 
The quorum of the Audit Committee meeting shall not 
constitute without at least 1 (one) Independent Director. 

 
 No such incident was 

occurred. 

5.3 Chairperson of the Audit Committee: 

5(3)(a) 
The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the Audit Committee to 
be Chairperson of the Audit Committee, who shall be an 
Independent Director; 

 
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5(3)(b) 

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Audit Committee, the 
remaining members may elect one of themselves as Chairperson 
for that particular meeting, in that case there shall be no problem 
of constituting a quorum as required under condition No. 5(4)(b) 
and the reason of absence of the regular Chairperson shall be 
duly recorded in the minutes; 

  

No such incident was 
occurred. 

5(3)(c) 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall remain present in the 
Annual General Meeting (AGM). 

 
  

5.4 Meeting of the Audit Committee: 

5(4)(a) 
The Audit Committee shall conduct at least its four meetings in a 
financial year: 
 

 
 

 

5(4)(b) 

The quorum of the meeting of the Audit Committee shall be 
constituted in presence of either two members or two third of the 
members of the Audit Committee, whichever is higher, where 
presence of an independent director is a must. 

  

No such incident was 
occurred. 

5.5 Role of Audit Committee: 

5(5)(a) Oversee the financial reporting process,    

5(5)(b) Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles,    

5(5)(c) 

Monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure that it 
is adequately resourced, including approval of the Internal Audit 
and Compliance Plan and review of the Internal Audit and 
Compliance Report; 

 

  

5(5)(d) Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors;    

5(5)(e) 
Hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors for review of 
the annual financial statements before submission to the Board 
for approval or adoption; 

 

  

5(5)(f) 
Review along with the management, the annual financial 
statements before submission to the board for approval; 

 
  

5(5)(g) 
Review along with the management, the quarterly and half 
yearly financial statements before submission to the board for 
approval; 

 

  

5(5)(h) Review the adequacy of internal audit function;    

5(5)(i) 
Review the Management’s Discussion and Analysis before 
disclosing in the Annual Report; 

 
  

5(5)(j) 
Review statement of all related party transactions 
submitted by the management; 

   

5(5)(k) 
Review Management Letters or Letter of Internal Control 
weakness issued by statutory auditors; 

   

5(5)(l) 

Oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope 
and magnitude, level of expertise deployed and time 
required for effective audit and evaluate the performance 
of external auditors; 

   

5(5)(m) 

Oversee whether the proceeds raised through Initial Public 
Offering (IPO) or Repeat Public Offering (RPO) or Rights 
Share Offer have been utilized as per the purposes stated 
in relevant offer document or prospectus approved by the 
Commission: 

  
No such incident was 
taken place during 
the year. 

5(6) Reporting of the Audit Committee: 

5(6)(a) Reporting to the Board of Directors: 

5(6)(a)(i) The Audit Committee shall report on its activities to the Board;    

5(6)(a)(ii) The Audit Committee shall immediately report to the Board on the following findings, if any: 

5(6)(a)(ii)(a) Report on conflicts of interest;   No such incident was 
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5(6)(a)(ii)(b) 
Suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or material defect 
identified in the internal audit and compliance process or in the 
financial statements; 

 

 

occurred to report. 

5(6)(a)(ii)(c) 
Suspected infringement of laws, regulatory compliances 
including securities related laws, rules and regulations; 

 
 

5(6)(a)(ii)(d) 
Any other matter which the Audit Committee deems necessary 
shall be disclosed to the Board immediately; 

 
 

5(6)(b) 

Reporting to the Authorities: 
 

If any report which has material impact on the financial 
condition and results of operation and which has discussed with 
the Board and the management that any rectification is 
necessary and if the Audit Committee finds that such 
rectification has been unreasonably ignored, the Audit 
Committee shall report such finding to the Commission, upon 
reporting of such matters to the Board for three times or 
completion of a period of 6 (six) months from the date of first 
reporting to the Board, whichever is earlier; 

 

 

5(7) 

Reporting to the Shareholders and General Investors: 

Report on activities carried out by the Audit Committee, 
including any report made to the Board under condition No. 
5(6)(a)(ii) above during the year, shall be signed by the 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee and disclosed in the annual 
report of the issuer company. 

 

 

6. Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC): 

6(1) Responsibility to the Board of Directors: 

6(1)(a) 
The company shall have a Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee (NRC) as a subcommittee of the Board;    

6(1)(b) 

The NRC shall assist the Board in formulation of the nomination 
criteria or policy for determining qualifications, positive 
attributes, experiences and independence of directors and top 
level executive as well as a policy for formal process of 
considering remuneration of directors, top level executive; 

  

 

6(1)(c) 
The Terms of Reference (ToR) of the NRC shall be clearly set 
forth in writing covering the areas stated at the condition No. 
6(5)(b). 

  
 

6(2) Constitution of the NRC: 

6(2)(a) 
The Committee shall comprise of at least three members 
including an independent director; 

 
  

6(2)(b) All members of the Committee shall be non-executive directors;    

6(2)(c) 
Members of the Committee shall be nominated and appointed 
by the Board; 

  
 

6(2)(d) 
The Board shall have authority to remove and appoint any 
member of the Committee; 

  
 

6(2)(e) 

In case of death, resignation, disqualification, or removal of any 
member of the Committee or in any other cases of vacancies, 
the board shall fill the vacancy within 180 (one hundred eighty) 
days of occurring such vacancy in the Committee; 

  
No such incident was 
occurred. 

6(2)(f) 

The Chairperson of the Committee may appoint or co-opt any 
external expert and/or member(s) of staff to the Committee as 
advisor who shall be non-voting member, if the Chairperson 
feels that advice or suggestion from such external expert and/or 
member(s) of staff shall be required or valuable for the 
Committee; 

  

 
 
No such incident was 
occurred. 
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6(2)(g) 

The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the 
Committee; 

  
 

6(2)(h) 
The quorum of the NRC meeting shall not constitute without 
attendance of at least an independent director; 

  
No such incident was 
occurred 

6(2)(i) 

No member of the NRC shall receive, either directly or 
indirectly, any remuneration for any advisory or consultancy role 
or otherwise, other than Director’s fees or honorarium from the 
company. 

   

6(3) Chairperson of the NRC: 

6(3)(a) 
The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the NRC to be 
Chairperson of the Committee, who shall be an independent 
director; 

   

6(3)(b) 

In the absence of the Chairperson of the NRC, the remaining 
members may elect one of themselves as Chairperson for that 
particular meeting, the reason of absence of the regular 
Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the minutes; 

  
No such incident was 
occurred. 

6(3)(c) 
The Chairperson of the NRC shall attend the Annual General 
Meeting (AGM) to answer the queries of the shareholders: 

  
 

6(4) Meeting of the NRC: 

6(4)(a) The NRC shall conduct at least one meeting in a financial year;    

6(4)(b) 
The Chairperson of the NRC may convene any emergency 
meeting upon request by any member of the NRC; 

  
No such incident was 
occurred. 

6(4)(c) 

The quorum of the meeting of the NRC shall be constituted in 
presence of either two members or two third of the members of 
the Committee, whichever is higher, where presence of an 
independent director is must as required under condition No. 
6(2)(h); 

  

 

6(4)(d) 
The proceedings of each meeting of the NRC shall duly be 
recorded in the minutes and such minutes shall be confirmed in 
the next meeting of the NRC. 

  

 

6(5) Role of the NRC: 

6(5)(a) 
NRC shall be independent and responsible or accountable to 
the Board and to the shareholders; 

   

6(5)(b) 
NRC shall oversee, among others, the following matters and make report with recommendation to the 
Board, 

6(5)(b)(i) 

Formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 
director and recommend a policy to the Board, relating to the remuneration of the directors, top level 
executive, considering the following: 

6(5)(b)(i)(a) 
The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and 
sufficient to attract, retain and motivate suitable directors to run 
the company successfully; 

 

  

6(5)(b)(i)(b) 
The relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and 
meets appropriate performance benchmarks; 

 
  

6(5)(b)(i)(c) 

Remuneration to directors, top level executive involves a 
balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and 
long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of 
the company and its goals; 

 

  

6(5)(b)(ii) 
Devising a policy on Board’s diversity taking into consideration 
age, gender, experience, ethnicity, educational background and 
nationality; 

 
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6(5)(b)(iii) 

Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and 
who may be appointed in top level executive position in 
accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend their 
appointment and removal to the Board; 

 

  

6(5)(b)(iv) 
Formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance of 
independent directors and the Board; 

 
  

6(5)(b)(v) 
Identifying the company’s needs for employees at different 
levels and determine their selection, transfer or replacement 
and promotion criteria; 

 

  

6(5)(b)(vi) 
Developing, recommending and reviewing annually the 
company’s human resources and training policies; 

 
  

6(5)(c) 
The company shall disclose the nomination and remuneration 
policy and the evaluation criteria and activities of NRC during 
the year at a glance in its annual report. 

   

7. External or Statutory Auditors: 

7(1) 
The issuer company shall not engage its external or statutory auditors to perform the following 
services of the company, namely: 

7(1)(i) Appraisal or valuation services or fairness opinions;    

7(1)(ii) Financial information systems design and implementation;    

7(1)(iii) 
Book-keeping or other services related to the accounting 
records or financial statements; 

 
  

7(1)(iv) Broker – dealer services    

7(1)(v) Actuarial services    

7(1)(vi) Internal audit services or special audit services;    

7(1)(vii) Any service that the Audit Committee determines;    

7(1)(viii) 
Audit or certification services on compliance of corporate 
governance as required under condition No. 9(1); 

 
  

7(1)(ix) Any other service that creates conflict of interest.    

7(2) 

No partner or employees of the external audit firms shall 
possess any share of the company they audit at least during the 
tenure of their audit assignment of that company; his or her 
family members also shall not hold any shares in the said 
company; 

 

  

7(3) 

Representative of external or statutory auditors shall remain 
present in the Shareholders’ Meeting (Annual General Meeting 
or Extraordinary General Meeting) to answer the queries of the 
shareholders. 

 

  

8. Maintaining a website by the Company: 

8(1) 
The company shall have an official website linked with the 
website of the stock exchange. 

 
  

8(2) 
The company shall keep the website functional from the date of 
listing. 

 
  

8(3) 
The company shall make available the detailed disclosures on 
its website as required under the listing regulations of the 
concerned stock exchange(s). 

 

  

9. Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Governance: 

9(1) 

The company shall obtain a certificate from a practicing 
Professional Accountant or Secretary (Chartered Accountant or 
Cost and Management Accountant or Chartered Secretary) 
other than its statutory auditors or audit firm on yearly basis 
regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance 
Code of the Commission and shall such certificate shall be 
disclosed in the Annual Report; 

 
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9(2) 
The professional who will provide the certificate on compliance 
of this Corporate Governance Code shall be appointed by the 
shareholders in the annual general meeting; 

 

  

9(3) 
The directors of the company shall state, in accordance with the 
Annexure-Attached, in the directors’ report whether the 
company has complied with these conditions or not. 

 
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DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY 

 
1. Introduction: 
 
The Dividend Distribution Policy prescribes a set of principles/guidelines in relation to declaration 
and payment of dividend and matters incidental thereto or connected therewith. The said policy 
has been formulated for ensuring the proper distribution of declared dividend to the shareholders 
of the company.  
 
This policy has been prepared pursuant to the Directive dated 14th January 2021 bearing 
reference No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2021-386/03 issued by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange 
Commission (BSEC).  
 
2. Procedure for Declaration of Dividend: 
 
Amount of dividend (basis on the ordinary share of the company of taka 10 each) will be 
recommended by the Board of Directors on specific agenda of Board Meeting and finally dividend 
shall be approved by the shareholders at Annual General Meeting (AGM) on the basis of 
recommendation of the Board of Directors but no dividend shall exceed the amount recommended 
by the Board of Directors.  
 
Mainly, declaration of dividend would be based on the audited financial statements of the company 
and also considering the following relevant factors: 
 
 Past dividend trends 
 Net profit after tax 
 Shareholder expectations 
 Dividend policy of competitors 
 Cash flow position & working capital requirement & 
 All applicable regulatory requirements. 
 
3. Entitlement of Dividend: 
 
The shareholders whose names would appear in the Register of Members of the company and/or 
in the depository on the “Record Date” would be eligible to join in the AGM & entitled to receive 
the annual/final dividend of the company.  
 
4. Payment / Distribution of Dividend: 
 
Company shall pay off final dividend to the entitled shareholders within 30 (thirty) days from the 
date of approval by the shareholders in AGM. Cash dividend shall be distributed in the following 
manner & procedures: 
 
 Upon approval from shareholders in AGM, we will keep the whole amount of cash dividend 

payable declared by the Board of Directors for the concern year in our separate bank account 
within 10 (ten) days of the AGM. 
 

 Company shall pay off cash dividend directly to the bank account of the entitled shareholders 
as available in the BO account maintained with the Depository Participants (DP) or the bank 
account as provided by the shareholders in paper form through Bangladesh Electronic Funds 
Transfer Network (BEFTN). 
 

 In case of non-availability of bank account information or if not possible to distribute cash 
dividend through BEFTN or electronic payment system. Company shall issue cash dividend 
warrant and shall send it by post to the shareholders. 

 

 
 
 



APEX FOODS LIMITED                                                                     Annual Report 2022-23 

23 

 

 
5. Unpaid or Unclaimed Dividend: 
 
Pursuant to the Directive No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2021-386/03 dated 14.01.2021, the Company shall 
maintain as separate line item namely “Unclaimed Dividend Account” where unpaid or 
unclaimed dividend shall be accounted for in audited accounts for a period 3 (three) years and this 
unpaid or unclaimed cash dividend shall be kept to a separate bank account of the company within 
one year from the date of declaration or approval or record date. After elapse of the afore-
mentioned period, if any dividend remains unpaid or unclaimed or unsettled, such dividend along 
with accrued interest shall be transferred to the “Capital Market Stabilization Fund” maintained 
by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission. 
 
6. Procedure for claiming unpaid Dividend: 
 
The procedure for claiming unpaid or unclaimed dividend which are as follows: 
 
 Shareholders are required to make an application for unpaid dividend for latest three years at 

its registered office address. 
 

 Shareholders may apply in person at Corporate Office of the Company. 
 
 Unpaid Dividends will be paid to the shareholders, upon verification of the relevant BO ID 

information, cell phone number, NID and email address maintained with the Central Depository 
of Bangladesh Limited (CDBL). 
 

 Unpaid Dividends will be paid through issuance of Dividend Warrant/BEFTN/other banking 
channels within 15 (fifteen) working days from the application. 

 
7. Disclosure of Dividend Information: 

 
The Company maintains a record of unpaid or unclaimed dividend. Summary of such record 
shall be available in the Annual Report and in the Quarterly Financial Statements. The 
Company shall also publish such record in its website in accordance with the Directive No. 
BSEC/CMRRCD/2021-386/03 dated 14.01.2021. 
 

8. Submission of Dividend Distribution Compliance Report: 
 
The Company shall submit a dividend distribution compliance report to BSEC, DSE & CSE in a 
specific format issued by the regulator(s) within stipulated time of completion of dividend 
distribution to the entitled shareholders. 
 

9. General: 

 
The dividend Policy would be subject to revision/amendment in accordance with changes in 
applicable laws or the guidelines issued by BSEC or such other regulatory authority as may be 
authorized, from time to time, on the subject matter. 
 
The Board shall review this Policy annually. Upon recommendation of the Board, the Company 
reserves its right to alter, modify, add, delete or amend any of the provision of this policy. 
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN 

 
Dear Shareholders, 
 
It is a pleasure for me to welcome you all to the Forty-Fourth Annual General Meeting 
of your Company and to present the Annual Report for the year ended June 30, 2023. 
 
World Economic Outlook: 
 
As your company is a 100% export oriented company, our performance is dependent 
on the overall global economy. Particularly the economy of the developed countries. 
The International Monetary Fund (IMF) has forecasted on April 11, 2023 in their world 
economic outlook that the growth to fall from 3.4 percent in 2022 to 2.8 percent in 
2023, before settling at 3.0 percent in 2024. Advanced economies are expected to see 
an especially pronounced growth slowdown, from 2.7 percent in 2022 to 1.3 percent in 
2023. In a plausible alternative scenario with further financial sector stress, global 
growth declines to about 2.5 percent in 2023 with advanced economy growth falling 
below 1 percent. Global headline inflation in the baseline is set to fall from 8.7 percent 
in 2022 to 7.0 percent in 2023 on the back of lower commodity prices but underlying 
(core) inflation is likely to decline more slowly. Inflation’s return to target is unlikely 
before 2025 in most cases.  
 
Bangladesh Economy: 
 

The slower growth forecast reflects subdued domestic demand and weaker export 
expansion due Bangladesh economy almost dependent on the export performance 
and export performance dependent on labor costs, fuel costs, electricity costs and 
infrastructure cost of Bangladesh. The economy of Bangladesh’s has recovered from 
the economic damage caused by the impact of COVID-19 and the ongoing Russia-
Ukraine crisis, although the recent slowdown in the global economy has adversely 
affected the country’s economic growth. Bangladesh’s economic growth in the pre 
COVID-19 fiscal year (FY 2018-19) was 7.88 percent. During the COVID-19 period, 
this growth rate declined to 3.45 percent in FY 2019-20, which increased to 6.94 
percent in FY 2021-22. According to the provisional estimates of Bangladesh Bureau 
of Statistics (BBS), the GDP growth stood at 6.03 percent in FY 2022-23. 

 
My sincere thanks to all the respectable Shareholders for extending their continuous 
support and confidence in the Board of Directors of your Company. I also like to put 
on record my sincere appreciation to the Banks, Financial and Regulatory Agencies, 
Suppliers, Customers, various people with whom we have interacted in the course of 
business, management staff, and members of the Company at all levels for their 
cooperation and sincere efforts in the growth of your Company. 
 
 
Place: Dhaka                                       Sd/- 

Dated: October 03, 2023 Zahur Ahmed PhD 
Chairman 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of the Company’s position and operations along with a 
brief discussion of changes in the financial statements as per condition no. 1.5(XXV) of Corporate 
Governance Code dated June 03, 2018: 
 

(a) Accounting policies and estimation for preparation of financial statements: 
These Financial Statements have been prepared under the Historical Cost Convention, accrual 
and Going Concern basis in accordance with applicable International Accounting Standards (IASs) 
and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) in Bangladesh and the following IASs and 
IFRSs are applicable for the financial statements for the year under review: 
 

 IAS-1  Presentation of financial statements 

 IAS-2    Inventories 

 IAS-7    Statement of Cash Flows   

 IAS-8    Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 

 IAS-10 Events after the Reporting Period 

 IAS-12 Income Taxes 

 IAS-16   Property, Plant and Equipment 

 IAS-21   The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates 

 IAS-23   Borrowing Costs 

 IAS-24   Related Party Disclosures 

 IAS-33   Earnings Per Share 

 IAS-36 Impairment of Assets 

 IAS-37   Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
 
 

 IFRS-7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures 

 IFRS-9 Financial Instruments 
 
 
 
 

 IFRS-15 Revenue from contracts with customers 
 
 
 
 
 

 IFRS-16 Leases 
 
 
 
 
 

  

(b) Changes in accounting policies and estimation: 
There was no change in accounting policies and estimation during the year under review. 
 

(c) Comparative analysis of financial performance or results and financial position as 
well as cash flows for current financial year with immediate preceding five years 
explaining reasons: 

                                                                                                                  Figure in Thousand Taka 

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18 

Operational and Financial Data: 
Revenue 2,419,770 3,512,950 2,759,680 2,184,387 1,712,670 1,922,168 
Gross Profit 266,974 377,598 231,157 189,858 197,054 209,731 
Operating Profit/(Loss) 106,178 106,822 91,390 85,399 96,071 102,415 
Profit before Tax 99,603 77,284 48,104 36,422 38,406 33,931 
Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax 50,832 29,316 11,805 10,738 11,781 9,660 
Total Assets 1,164,979 1,239,984 1,453,953 1,714,463 1,682,611 1,872,183 
Total Liabilities 388,290 520,443 773,154 1,026,559 973,405 1,093,400 
Current Assets 742,719 836,087 1,074,803 1,315,229 1,256,464 1,353,620 
Current Liabilities 348,801 466,858 736,897 988,234 930,566 1,047,479 
Reserve and Surplus 245,171 205,744 187,833 184,581 185,248 184,752 
Share Holders’ Equity 776,689 719,541 680,799 687,905 709,206 779,088 
Current Ratio 2.13 1.79 1.46 1.33 1.35 1.29 

Net Assets Value (NAV) per Share 136.20 126.18 119.39 120.63 124.37 136.62 
Earnings Per Share (EPS) 8.91 5.14 2.07 1.88 2.07 1.69 

NOCFPS 81.84 62.14 42.87 16.66 24.70 8.25 

 
 

There was significant variance in net operating cash flows. The Net Operating Cash Flows per 
Share are positive/negative and are different in every financial year as this depends on different 
issues mainly, Collection from revenue and payment for costs and expenses. This scenario is 
changeable from time to time depending on different issues. 
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(d) Compare such financial performance or results and financial position as well as 

cash flows with the peer industry scenario: 
 

                                                       “Figure in thousand Taka” 
 

Particulars 
         Apex Foods Ltd. 

             2022-23 
      Peer Industry Scenario 

2022-23 

Operational and Financial  Data:   

   
Revenue 2,419,770  Not available 

Gross Profit   266,974 Not available 

Profit before Tax  99,603 Not available 

Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax  50,832 Not available 

Net Assets Value (NAV) per Share 136.20 25.03  

Earnings Per Share (EPS) 8.91  15.47 

NOCFPS 81.84 0.20 

 

(e) Briefly explain the financial and economic scenario of the country and the globe: 
 

Bangladesh's economy has recovered from the economic damage caused by the 
impact of COVID-19 and the ongoing Russia-Ukraine crisis, although the recent 
slowdown in the global economy has adversely affected the country's economic growth. 
Bangladesh's economic growth in the pre-COVID-19 fiscal year (FY 2018-19) was 7.88 
percent. During the COVID-19 period, this growth rate declined to 3.45 percent in FY 
2019-20, which increased to 6.94 percent in FY 2020-21 and 7.10 percent in FY 2021-
22. According to the provisional estimates of Bangladesh Bureau of Statistics (BBS), the 
GDP growth stood at 6.03 percent in FY 2022-23Prices of Bangladeshi shrimp have 
dropped by 24% in FY23 due to the long-running Russia-Ukraine war on international 
markets. It could earn $20.55 million in July 2023 instead of $30.85 million in July 2022, 
according to data available with the Export Promotion Bureau. To prevent further 
erosion in the exports, which mostly comprise of black tigers, the Department of 
Fisheries recently gave preliminary permission for vannamei production in the country. 
In most cases here, shrimp farming is currently done in the traditional way, so 
production is only 300-400 kg per hectare, which is the lowest in the world.  

 
However, if shrimp farming is done scientifically, the production will be 3-4 tonnes per 
hectare, which has not been possible to expand so far. Unlike leading exporters China 
and Vietnam, Bangladesh is still unable to produce higher value-added frozen shrimp 
products, which are in great demand abroad. 

 
The government has also allowed for trial production of vannamei shrimp fry to meet the 
demand for quality post-larvae of the fish for cultivators. More than 60 countries, 
including China, India, Vietnam, Thailand, Indonesia, Malaysia, Ecuador and Mexico, 
are producing vannamei, meeting about 80% of the total shrimp demand in the world. 

 
(f) Risk and concerns issues related to the financial statements, explaining such risk   

and concerns mitigation plan of the company:  
 

           Apex Foods Limited is availing working capital loan and there is risk of higher interest 
rate, it is highly exposed to interest rate risk. To minimize this exposure, the company is 
emphasizing on own fund based financing to reduce dependency on interest based 
borrowed fund.  

 
          The fisheries sector is a major driver for growth for Bangladesh. The marine and coastal 

fisheries have significant potential for sustainable and higher production. Bangladesh is 
keeping its focus on black tiger shrimp production, even as its neighbor, India, aims to 
farm one million metric tons of vannamei Shrimp per year. Bangladesh has a niche 
market for Black Tiger Shrimp but lags behind most other countries in adoption of 
modern technologies for shrimp farming and utilization of economic potential. So all out 
efforts should be made to adopt modern farming technology as quickly as possible to 
increase production & cut costs to remain competitive in the world market and retain the 
market share and survive global competition. 
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g) Future plan: 

Apex Foods Limited continues to train its workers to make them more efficient and this will 
continue in future. As a result, the products will be able to meet international standards and 
be more hygienic. The Company’s future plan is to sell it’s products with more value 
addition and explore new markets so that the Company can maintain a sustainable growth 
in the coming years.   

 
 
 
 

Place: Dhaka         Sd/- 
Dated: October 03, 2023  Shahriar Ahmed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Managing Director 
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS 

Dear Shareholders, 
 

The Directors are pleased to submit to you the Annual Report together with the Auditor’s Report 
and Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2023. 
 

The Directors' Report is prepared in compliance with Section 184 of the Companies Act, 1994 and 
Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission's (BSEC) notification no- BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-
158/207/Admin/80 dated June 03, 2018. 
 
(i) Industry outlook and possible future developments in the industry: 

 
Shrimp cultivation has a long and largely quiet history in Bangladesh, but during its rapid 
growth over the past two decades, in response to expanding global demand, it has acquired 
a highly contested status. Shrimp is a very important resource that supports a large industry 
in Bangladesh. Shrimp is the second most important source of export accounting for a yearly 
earning of over US$ 300 million. Of all the exportable agro-based primary commodities, 
shrimp is by far the most important. It alone contributes more than 70% to the total export 
earnings from all the agro-based products, including tea, raw jute, vegetables, fruit, etc. The 
shrimp industry also provides direct employment to over 600,000 people who in turn support 
well over 3.5 million dependents. Despite all these positive points, there are views that the 
shrimp industry is not without vices. While its supporters see it as a valuable way of 
generating foreign exchange, those against it point to the environmental damage, social 
disruption, and rising domestic inequalities that result from trying to meet the growing luxury 
demands of distant Western consumers. The debate has become very polarized between 
those who support shrimp farming, and those who are opposed to it. 
 

(ii) Segment-wise or product-wise performance: 
 

          As Apex Foods Limited produces only shrimp, there is no scope for Product-wise 
performance reporting. However, country-wise export details are given in note 29 of the 
Annual Report.    
  

(iii) Risks and concerns: 
 
The shrimp industry in Bangladesh is an important economic sectror with growing demand, 
export potential and employment opportunities. However, the industry is threatened by 
external and local production and market risk. There are several reasons behind this. 
Viruses found in shrimp exported to foreign countries had a massive impact on shrimp 
exportation and the country's economy. Some time ago, due to the government’s restriction 
on catching shrimp from natural sources, shrimp cultivation fell under huge risk. For these 
specific reasons, foreign export drops, and shrimp farmers start to lose interest. 85 per cent 
of shrimp from Bangladesh are exported to European countries. In those countries, the 
demand for tiger prawns and lobsters is not the same as before. There are also plenty of 
reasons behind it. 
 
Whatever the purpose might be, shrimp farmers, researchers, businessmen, and the 
government all stakeholders are all working on solving these issues. They are thinking about 
how they can increase shrimp production in Bangladesh. They are working on an alternative 
way, which is cheaper for shrimp production. Even so, they are thinking of improving the 
quality of the shrimp production sector, and research is being done on this. The shrimp 
farmers are also working on the production of white leg shrimp. 
 

(iv) Discussion on Cost of Goods Sold, Gross Profit Margin and Net Profit Margin: 
 
(a) Cost of Goods Sold: 

 
The reporting year's cost of goods sold was Tk. 2,153 million. The last year's cost of 
goods sold was Tk. 3,135 million. This is due to decrease in gross revenue and average 
production cost of Tk. 205/- per Kg. During the year 1,623,277 Kg of shrimps were 
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produced against last year's production of year 2,797,267 Kg. Production capacity 
utilized during the year was 22.54%. Raw material purchase cost has increased to the 
tune of Tk. 850.81 million against last year. Raw materials had to be purchased more 
during the year to meet the sales projection. 
 

(b) Gross Profit: 
 
The Company has achieved export revenue of Tk. 2,420 million during the year ended 
June 30, 2023. Last year's revenue was Tk. 3,513 million. The decrease in revenue is 
31.12% over the previous year. The decrease in revenue is due to the global economic 
slowdown. During the year, gross profit earned was Tk. 266.97 million against last year's 
gross profit of Tk. 377.60 million. Despite substantial decrease in revenue, as well as 
decrease in the gross profit margin.       

   
(c) Net Profit: 

 
Net profit / (Loss) after tax earned during the year was Tk. 50.83 million compared to last 
year's Net Profit after tax of Tk. 29.32 million. During the year, the company manage to 
earn a net profit due to strong exchange rate support, decrease in freight forwarding 
expenses also financial expenses decrease and increased in other income. 

 
(v) Extra-Ordinary gain or loss: 

 
During the year, there was no realized extra-ordinary gain or loss made by the Company. An 
amount of Tk. 17.72 million has been shown as Fair Value Surplus of Investment in shares 
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income, which represents the difference between the 
closing price of the investment in the Shares of Apex Spinning & Knitting Mills Limited and 
Apex Weaving & Finishing Mills Limited and the price shown in the last Statement of 
Financial Position. This accounting effect was given to comply with the latest requirement of 
International Accounting Standards (IASs) & International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRSs). Details are given in Note 20 of the Annual Report.    
 

(vi) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 
 There are one related party (inter Company) transactions during the year under review. 

 Transaction with key management personnel: 
 
Name Relationship Nature Transaction Opening 

Balance 
Transaction 

during the period 
Closing 
Balance 

1. Mr. Zahur Ahmed PhD Director Revenue 
Expenditure 

*Office rent - - - 

2. Mrs. Shawkat Ara Ahmed Director 

3. Mr. Shahriar Ahmed Director 

4. Mr. Mahir Ahmed Family member of 
Director 5. Mr. Eifaz Ahmed 

6. Matex Bangladesh Limited Common Director Capital 
Expenditure 

**To buy a 
Car 

- 1,406,888/- Nil 

*The Directors & their family members have provided a rent-free office space for business transaction for the 
company as per agreement. However, the total rental spaces as mentioned in the agreement is approximately 
79,444.10 sft for 11 sister concerns of the Directors of the company which is located at Shanta Sky Mark (Level 8 
to 13), Plot # 18, Block # CWS(A), Gulshan Avenue, Gulshan, Dhaka-1212. Therefore, the value of the related 
party transaction is nil. 

 
**Tk.1,406,888.00 was given to Matex Bangladesh Limited during the year to buy a car on behalf of the company. 
Now Closing Balance of related party is nil. 

 
(vii) Utilization of proceeds from public issues and/ or rights issues:  

There was no right issue offered during the year.  
 
(viii) Financial results after the Company goes for Initial Public Offering (IPO), Repeat 

Public Offering (RPO), Rights Offer, Direct Listing, etc.:  
 
Initial Public Offering was made on June 22, 1981, and subsequently, the Right Offer was 
made on January 11, 1997. Since then, the Company is performing well.  
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(ix) Variance between Quarterly Financial performance and Annual Financial Statements: 

There was no significant variance between quarterly performance (i.e., up to 3rd quarter, 
EPS was Tk.7.29 & annually it has reached Tk. 8.91) and annual financial statements.  
 

(x) Remuneration to directors including independent directors: 
 
The remunerations of Directors, including Independent Director, are as follows: 
 

Name of the Directors Director / Independent Director Yearly Remuneration 

Mrs.Shawkat Ara Ahmed  Director  TK.  800,000/- 
Mr. Ashim Kumar Barua  Director  TK. 4,200,000/- 
Mr. Kazi Faruq Kader  Independent Director (Rtd.) TK.  600,000/- 
Mr. Tarek Nizamuddin Ahmed Independent Director - 

 
(xi) The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company present fairly its 

state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows, and changes in equity. 
 
(xii) Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained. 

 
(xiii) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of the 

financial statements, and that the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and 
prudent judgment. 

 

(xiv) International Accounting Standards (IASs) & International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRSs), have been followed in the preparation of the financial statements and any departure 
there-from has been adequately disclosed. 

 

(xv) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and 
monitored. 

 
(xvi) There was no such situation raised to protect the interest of minority shareholders. 
 

(xvii) There are no significant doubts about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.  
 

(xviii) Deviation from the last year's operating results: 
During the year, revenue has decreased. But due to price adjustments, more efficient 
handing raw material purchase and an increase in production efficiency, there is no 
significant deviation in operating results.    
 

(xix) Key operating and financial data of at least preceding 5 (five) years:  
                                                                                                                                        "Figure in thousand Taka" 

 

Particulars 2022-2023 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18 

Operational Data:       

       
Revenue 2,419,770 3,512,950 2,759,680 2,184,387 1,712,670  1,922,168  
Gross Profit  266,974 377,598 231,157 189,858  197,054   209,731  
Operating Profit/(Loss)  106,178 106,822 91,390 85,399  96,071   102,415  
Profit before Tax 99,603 77,284 48,104 36,422  38,406   33,931  
Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax 50,832 29,316 11,805 10,738  11,781   9,660  
Earnings Per Share (EPS) 8.91 5.14 2.07 1.88  2.07   1.69  
Dividend Per Share 2.00 2.00 2.00 1.50  2.00   2.00  

Financial Data:       

       
Total Assets 1,164,979 1,239,983 1,453,953 1,714,463 1,682,611 1,872,183  
Property, Plant and Equipment-Gross 764,692 749,849 732,112 725,427 710,997  705,057  
Property, Plant and Equipment-Net  76,112 77,439 74,650 84,414 88,988  103,205  
Gross Working Capital 742,719 836,087 1,074,803 1,315,229 1,256,464  1,353,620  
Net Working Capital 393,918 369,229 337,906 326,994  325,898   306,141  
Working Capital Loan 1,691 312,870 596,148 754,195  744,293   762,783  
Share Capital  57,024 57,024 57,024 57,024  57,024   57,024  
Share Premium 209,088 209,088 209,088 209,088 209,088  209,088  
Reserve and Surplus  245,171 205,744 187,833 184,581 185,248  184,752  
Share Holders’ Equity  776,689 719,541 680,799 687,905 709,206  779,088  
Long Term Loan  - - 5,614 5,232  2,363   2,975  
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(xx) Dividend:  
 

The Board of Directors has recommended a Cash Dividend @ 20%, i.e., Taka 2.00 per 
share of Tk. 10.00 each for the year ended June 30, 2023, to those shareholders whose 
names would appear in the Share Register of Members of the Company or in the Depository 
list of CDBL as on October 26, 2023, at the close of office.   

 

(xxi) Interim Dividend: 
 

The Board of Directors has declared no bonus share or stock dividend for the interim period. 
 

(xxii) Board Meetings: 
  
During the year, 11 (Eleven) Board Meetings were held. The attendance record of the 
Directors is as follows: 
 
Name of Directors  Meeting attended  
Mr. Zahur Ahmed PhD 11 
Mrs. Shawkat Ara Ahmed 03 
Mr. Shahriar Ahmed  11 
Mr. Mahir Ahmed 08 

Mr. Eifaz Ahmed 07 

Mr. Ashim Kumar Barua 11 

Mr. Kazi Faruq Kader  06 

Mr. Tarek Nizamuddin Ahmed 04 

 
(xxiii) The pattern of shareholding:  

 
Name wise details No. Shares 

 
a) Parent/subsidiary/Associated companies and other related parties:  

 
Apex Spinning & Knitting Mills Limited   
Apex Lingerie Limited  
 
 
 
 

 
169,250 
  10,800 

 
 
 
 
 

  
b) Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial 

Officer, Head of Internal Audit & Compliance:  
 

Mr. Zahur Ahmed PhD – Chairman 160,740 

Mrs. Shawkat Ara Ahmed – Director   988,066 

Mr. Shahriar Ahmed – Director 
 
 

      1,718,894 

Mr. Ashim Kumar Barua – Director 
 

       7,500 

    Mr. Tarek Nizamuddin Ahmed – Independent Director NIL 

Mrs. Sheuli Rani Dey – Chief Financial Officer NIL 

      Mr. Ashish Kumar Paul, FCA - Head of Internal Audit & Compliance NIL 

Mr. Kamrul Islam – Company Secretary  NIL 

  
c) Senior Corporate Executives: 
      

 
 

      Mr. Mominuddin Ahmed Khan-Executive Director 
 
 
 

2,450 
 
 

d) Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more voting interest in the 
Company:  

 

Mr. Shahriar Ahmed 1,718,894 

Mrs. Shawkat Ara Ahmed     988,066 
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(xxiv) Appointment/re-appointment of directors of the Company:  
 

Mr. Shahriar Ahmed and Mr. Ashim Kumar Barua are retiring from the Board in terms of 
the Articles of Association of the Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election. Beside them Mrs. Shawkat Ara Ahmed has appointed as Director and Mr. Tarek 
Nizamuddin Ahmed has appointed as Independent Director. The detailed work profiles of 
all of them are given below:  

 

            Mr. Shahriar Ahmed  
 

a. Mr. Shahriar Ahmed obtained his MBA from Johnson & Wales University, USA, and after      
completion of his education, he joined this Company in 2004. He is working in this sector 
since 2004. During his long tenure with the Company, Mr. Shahriar Ahmed has gathered 
vast knowledge about this sector as well as sufficient knowledge to run the company. Mr. 
Shahriar Ahmed is now acting as the Managing Director of the Company. 
 

b. He is holding the Directorship of (i) Apex Spinning & Knitting Mills Limited, (ii) Apex 
Lingerie Limited, (iii) Apex Yarn Dyeing Limited, (iv) Apex Textile Printing Mills Limited, (v) 
Apex Fashion Wear Limited and, (vi) Apex Agriscience Limited, (vii) Matex Bangladesh 
Limited. 
 

c. Presently, Mr. Shahriar Ahmed is one of the member of Audit Committee & Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee. 

 

            Mr. Ashim Kumar Barua 
 

a.  Mr. Ashim Kumar Barua is a Post Graduate from Dhaka University. He joined this Company 
in 1982, and since then he is working in this sector. During his long tenure with the 
Company, Mr. Ashim Kumar Barua gathered vast knowledge about this sector. Mr. Ashim 
Kumar Barua is now acting as the Director of the Company. 
 

b.  He is not holding the Directorship of any other Company. 
 

c.  He is one of the members of the Audit Committee.  
 

            Mrs. Shawkat Ara Ahmed 
 

a. Mrs. Shawkat Ara Ahmed is a Gradute from Dhaka University. She joined in this Company 
in 1996, in the mean time she was out of Board from 2014 to 2022 for her personal reason. 
Mrs. Shawkat Ara Ahmed has worked in this sector since a long tenure. During her long 
tenure with the company, Mrs. Shawkat Ara Ahmed gathered vast knowledge about this 
sector. 
 

b. She is holding the Directorship of (i) Apex Lingerie Limited, (ii) Apex Yarn Dyeing Limited, 
(iii) Apex Textile Printing Mills Limited, (iv) Apex Fashion Wear Limited (v) Apex 
Agriscience Limited and (vi) Matex Bangladesh Limited. 

 
c. She is not a member any committee of the Board. 

 
Mr. Tarek Nizamuddin Ahmed 
 

a. Mr. Tarek Nizamuddin Ahmed is a post Graduate in management from the University of 
Chittagong. After completation of his education he joined as Officer in ICB on August 02, 
1987, he held various important positions during his long career with ICB and has retired 
from his service on November 21, 2019 as Deputy General Manager. He is appointed as 
Independent Director of the Company on April 05, 2023. 
 

b. He has sound Knowledge in this Sector. 
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c. He is also appointed as Independent Director of Apex Spinning & Knitting Mills Ltd. 

 
d. Presently, he is the Chairman of the Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee of the Board.    
 
(xxv) Management Discussion & Analysis Signed by MD: 

 
The Managing Director has signed the management discussion and analysis, representing 
a detailed analysis of the Company's position and operation in the annual report as 
“Management Discussion & Analysis”.  
 

(xxvi) Declaration signed by MD & CFO: 
 

Please refer to Annexure-A for declaration signed by MD and CFO.  
 

(xxvii) Corporate Governance Compliance Report: 
 

According to the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) requirements, 
the "Corporate Governance Report" is annexed in Annexure B and C.  

 

(xxviii) Appointment of Statutory Auditors:  
 
The retiring Statutory Auditor M/s. Malek Siddiqui Wali., Chartered Accountants, being      
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the 
year 2023-2024.  
 

(xxix)  Appointment of Compliance Auditors:  
 

As per of the Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission for appointment of 
Compliance Auditor M/s. Shiraz Khan Basak & Co., Chartered Accountants, being eligible, 
offer themselves for appointment as a Professional for Certification on Compliance of 
Corporate Governance Code for the year 2023-2024. 
  

(xxx) Meeting of the Board of Directors: 
 
We have conducted our Board Meeting & recorded the minutes of the meeting as adopted 
by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB). 
 

 
 
 
Place: Dhaka                                                                      
Dated: October 03, 2023 

On behalf of the Board 

 Sd/- 
Zahur Ahmed PhD 

Chairman 
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cwiPvjKM‡Yi cÖwZ‡e`b 

wcÖq †kqvi‡nvìviMY,  

Avcbv‡`i †Kv¤úvbxi cwiPvjKMY 2023 mv‡ji 30 †k Ryb Zvwi‡L mgvß wnmve erm‡ii evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`b Gi mv‡_ 

wbix¶‡Ki cÖwZ‡e`b I wbixw¶Z Avw_©K weeiYx Avcbv‡`i m¤§y‡L Dc¯’vcb Ki‡Z †c‡i Avbw›`Z |   

 

cwiPvjbv cl©‡`i cÖwZ‡e`b cÖbq‡bi †¶‡Î †Kv¤úvbx AvBb, 1994 Gi 184 aviv I evsjv‡`k wmwKDwiwUR GÛ G·‡PÄ 

Kwgk‡bi (weGmBwm) †bvwUwd‡Kkb bs- weGmBwm/wmGgAviAviwmwW/2006-158/207/GWwgb/80 ZvwiL- Ryb 03, 2018 

Abymib Kiv n‡q‡Q| 

 

1. wkí m¤úwK©Z aviYv Ges GB wk‡íi fwel¨Z Dbœq‡bi m¤¢vebvt  

evsjv‡`‡k wPswo Pv‡li `xN© I cy‡iv‡bv BwZnvm i‡q‡Q, wKš‘ MZ ỳB `k‡K Gi ª̀æZ cÖe„w×i, wek¦e¨vcx µgea©gvb 

Pvwn`vi cÖwZwµqvq GwU GKwU AZ¨šÍ cÖwZØw›ØZvc~Y© Ae¯’vb AR©b K‡i‡Q| wPswo GKwU AZ¨šÍ ¸iæZ¡c~Y© m¤ú` hv 

evsjv‡`‡ki GKwU e„nr wkí‡K mnvqZv K‡i| wPswo n‡”Q idZvwb Av‡qi wØZxq ¸iæZ¡c~Y© Drm hv evwl©K 300 

wgwjq‡biI †ekx Av‡gwiKvb Wjvi Avq K‡i| idZvwb‡hvM¨ K…wlwfwËK cÖv_wgK c‡Y¨i g‡a¨ wPswo GLb ch©šÍ me‡P‡q 

¸iæZ¡c~Y©| GwU Pv, KuvPv cvU, kvKmewR, djg~jmn K…wlwfwËK me cY¨ †_‡K †gvU idZvwb Av‡qi 70 kZvs‡ki †ewk 

Ae`vb iv‡L| wPswo wkí 6,00,000 GiI †ewk †jvK‡K mivmwi Kg©ms ’̄v‡bi e¨e ’̄v K‡i, hvi dj¯̂iæc cÖvq 3.5 

wgwjq‡biI †ewk gvby‡li Rxeb RxweKvi mÿgZv †hvMv‡”Q| GB mg Í̄ BwZevPK w`K _vKv m‡Ë¡I, wPswo wkí SuywK gy³ 

bq| hw`I Gi m¦v_© mswkøó †Mvwôiv GwU‡K ˆe‡`wkK gy`ªv AR©‡bi GKwU g~j¨evb Dcvq wnmv‡e †`‡Lb, Avi hviv Gi 

we‡ivwaZv K‡ib Zviv cwi‡ekMZ ÿwZ, mvgvwRK weNœ Ges µgea©gvb Af¨šÍixY ˆel‡g¨i w`‡K Bw½Z K‡ib| Zviv 

g‡b K‡ib †h GwU ~̀ieZ©x cwðgv †fv³v‡`i µgea©gvb wejvmeûj Pvwn`v c~i‡Yi †Póvi dj¯̂iæc| ZvB hviv wPswo 

Pvl‡K mg_©b K‡ib Ges hviv Gi we‡ivwaZv K‡ib Zv‡`i g‡a¨ weZK©wU †giæK„Z n‡q ‡M‡Q| 

 

2. LvZIqvwi A_ev cb¨ wfwËK djvdjt 

‡h‡nZz G‡c· dzWm& wjwg‡UW ïay wPswo cÖwµqvKib I ißvbx K‡i ‡m‡nZz GLv‡b cY¨ wfwËK djvd‡ji weeiY †`Iqvi 

†Kvb my‡hvM †bB| hvB‡nvK evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`‡bi 29 bs †bv‡U Avgv‡`i cÖwZôvbwU †Kvb †`‡k KZ ißvbx K‡i‡Q Zvi 

we¯ÍvwiZ weeiY †`Iqv n‡q‡Q|  

 

3. SuywK I DwØMœZv mg~nt 

 evsjv‡`‡ki wPswo wkí µgea©gvb Pvwn`v, idZvwb m¤¢vebv Ges Kg©ms ’̄v‡bi my‡hvMmn GKwU ¸iæZ¡c~Y© A_©‰bwZK 

LvZ| eZ©gv‡b, GB wk‡í evwn¨K Ges ’̄vbxq Drcv`b Ges evRv‡ii SyuwK Øviv ûgwKi m¤§yLxb| Gi †cQ‡b †ek 

K‡qKwU KviY i‡q‡Q| we‡`‡k idZvwb Kiv wPswo‡Z fvBivm cvIqvq wPswo idZvwb Ges †`‡ki A_©bxwZ‡Z e¨vcK 

cÖfve †d‡j‡Q| wKQzw`b Av‡M cÖvK…wZK Drm †_‡K wPswo aivi Ici miKv‡ii wb‡lavÁvi Kvi‡Y wPswo Pvl e¨vcK 

SzuwKi gy‡L c‡o| Gme mywbw`©ó Kvi‡Y we‡`‡k wPswo idZvwb K‡g hv‡”Q Ges wPswo Pvwliv AvMÖn nviv‡Z ïiæ K‡i‡Qb| 

evsjv‡`‡k †_‡K 85 kZvsk wPswo BD‡iv‡ci †`k¸‡jv‡Z idZvwb nq| †mme †`k¸‡jv‡Z evNv wPswo I Mj`v wPswoi 

Pvwn`v Av‡Mi g‡Zv †bB| Gi †cQ‡bI i‡q‡Q A‡bK KviY | 

 

D‡Ïk¨ hvB †nvK bv ‡Kb, wPswo Pvlx, M‡elK, e¨emvqx Ges miKvi-mg Í̄ †÷K‡nvìvi-mK‡jB GB mgm¨v¸wj 

mgvav‡b KvR Ki‡Q| Zviv evsjv‡`‡k wPswoi Drcv`b Kxfv‡e evov‡bv hvq Zv wb‡q fve‡Qb| Zviv weKí Dcv‡q KvR 

Ki‡Qb, hv‡Z wPswo Drcv`‡bi Rb¨ LiP K‡g hvq| GgbwK Zviv wPswo Drcv`b Lv‡Zi gvb Dbœq‡bi K_v fve‡Qb 

Ges G wb‡q M‡elYv I Pj‡Q| ZvB eZ©gv‡b wPswo Pvlxiv mv`v cv‡qi wPswo Drcv`‡bI KvR Ki‡Qb| 

 

4. wewµZ c‡Y¨i e¨q we‡kølY, †gvU cÖvwšÍK gybvdv Ges bxU cÖvwšÍK gybvdv we‡kølYt  

 

K) wewµZ c‡Y¨i e¨q t 

     cÖwZ‡e`b Kvjxb mg‡q wewµZ c‡Y¨i e¨q wQj 2,153 wgwjqb UvKv| MZ ermi wewµZ c‡Y¨i e¨q wQj 3,135 

wgwjqb UvKv| wewµZ c‡Y¨i e¨q e„w× ‡c‡q‡Q Gi KviY g~jZ cÖwZ‡e`b Kvjxb mg‡q ‡gvU weµq n«vm †c‡q‡Q †mB 

mv‡_ M‡o †KwR cÖwZ Drcv`b e¨q 205 UvKv nv‡i e„w× ‡c‡q‡Q| PjwZ ermi 1,623,277 †KwR wPswo Drcv`b n‡q‡Q 

hv MZ ermi wQj 2,797,267 †KwR| PjwZ erm‡i Drcv`b ¶gZvi gvÎ 22.54 kZvsk e¨eüZ n‡q‡Q| MZ erm‡ii 
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Zyjbvq KuvPvgvj µ‡qi Rb¨ 850.81 wgwjqb UvKv ‡ewk LiP n‡q‡Q | weµq Pvwn`v c~i‡Yi Rb¨ G eQi †ewk 

KuvPvgvj µq Kiv n‡q‡Q| 

 

L) †gvU gybvdvt 

30 †k Ryb 2023 mgvß A_© erm‡i †Kv¤úvbx †gvU weµq K‡i‡Q 2,420 wgwjqb UvKv | MZ ermi weµq wQj 3,513 

wgwjqb UvKv| MZ erm‡ii Zyjbvq weµq 31.12 kZvsk n«vm †c‡q‡Q | weµq n«vm †c‡q‡Q g~jZ ˆewk¦K A_©bxwZ 

g›`vi Kvi‡Y| G ermi †gvU gybvdv AwR©Z n‡q‡Q 266.97 wgwjqb UvKv hv MZ ermi wQj 377.60 wgwjqb UvKv| 

weµq h‡_ô cwigv‡b n«vm cvIqvi `iæb, †gvU jvf gvwR©b n«vm †c‡q‡Q |  

 

M) bxU gybvdvt 

G ermi Ki cieZ©x bxU gybvdv n‡q‡Q 50.83 wgwjqb UvKv Ges MZ ermi Ki cieZ©x bxU gybvdv wQj 29.32 

wgwjqb UvKv| ˆe‡`wkK gy`ªvi g~j¨ e„w×, †d«BU diIqvwW©s PvR© n«vm Ges dvBbvbwkqvj e¨q nªv‡mi `iæb GB eQi bxU 

jvf e„w× †c‡q‡Q| 

 

5. A¯̂vfvweK jvf ev ¶wZt 

G ermi ev Í̄weK A‡_© cÖvß †Kvb A¯^vfvweK jvf ev ¶wZ ‡bB| wewb‡qv‡Mi myô g~j¨vq‡Yi d‡j 17.72 wgwjqb UvKv 

jvf n‡q‡Q hvnv mgwš^Z Avq weeiYx‡Z †`Lv‡bv n‡q‡Q hvnv G‡c· w¯úwbs GÛ bxwUs wgjm& wjwg‡UW Ges G‡c· 

DBwfs GÛ wdwbwks wgjm& wjwg‡UW Gi †kqv‡i wewb‡qv‡Mi mgvcbx g~j¨ Ges MZ erm‡ii Avw_©K Ae¯’vi weeiYx‡Z 

†`Lv‡bv g~‡j¨i cv_©K¨, Bnv B›Uvib¨vkbvj G¨vKvDw›Us ÷¨vÛvW©m (AvB.G.Gm) Ges B›Uvib¨vkbvj wdb¨vbwmqvj 

wi‡cvwU©s ÷¨vÛvW©m (AvB.Gd.Avi.Gm) Abyhvqx wnmve weeiYx‡Z †`Lv‡bv n‡q‡Q| evwl©K cªwZ‡e`†b 20 bs †bv‡U 

we¯ÍvwiZ weeiY †`Iqv n‡q‡Q| 

 

6. AvšÍt m¤úwK©Z †Kv¤úvbxi †jb‡`b mg~nt 

                    

                  ch©v‡jvPbvq †`Lv hvq G ermi AvšÍt m¤úwK©Z †Kv¤úvbxi mv‡_ GKUv †jb‡`b  n‡q‡Q|  

 

     †kqvi‡nvìvi cwiPvjK‡`i mv‡_ †jb‡`‡bi weeiY:          

‡Kv¤úvwbi bvg m¤úK© ‡jb‡`‡bi 

aiY 

‡jb‡`b cÖviw¤¢K 

e¨v‡jÝ 

GB eQi 

‡jb‡`‡bi 

cwigvb  

mgvcbx 

e¨v‡jÝ 

1) Rbve Rûi Avn‡g` 

wcGBPwW  

cwiPvjK gybvdv RvZxq Awdm fvov - - - 

2)  Rbvev kIKZ Aviv Avn‡g` cwiPvjK gybvdv RvZxq Awdm fvov - - - 

3) Rbve kvnwiqvi Avn‡g` cwiPvjK gybvdv RvZxq Awdm fvov - - - 

4) Rbve gvwni Avn‡g` GKB cwiev‡ii 

m`m¨ 

gybvdv RvZxq Awdm fvov - - - 

5) Rbve BdvR Avn‡g` GKB cwiev‡ii 

m`m¨ 

gybvdv RvZxq Awdm fvov - - - 

6) g¨v‡U· evsjv‡`k wjwg‡UW cwiPvjK g~jabx RvZxq **Mvwo µq - 1,406,888/- - 

 

†Kv¤úvbxi †kqvi‡nvìvi cwiPvjKMY webv fvovq Zv‡`i RvqMv e¨emvwqK D‡Ï‡k¨ †Kv¤úvwb‡K cÖ`vb K‡i‡Q| `wjj 

Abymv‡i, †gvU fvovK„Z RvqMvi AvbygvwbK cwigvb 79,444.10 Gm Gd wU gvwjK‡`i 11 wU mncÖwZôv‡bi mv‡_ i‡q‡Q| 

hvnvi wVKvbv kvšÍv ¯‹vB gvK©  (‡j‡fj 8-13), cøU # 18, eøK # CWS(a),  ¸jkvb GwfwbD, ¸jkvb , XvKv-1212| 

ZvB, AvšÍt m¤úwK©Z †jb‡`†bi ‡Kvb mgvcbx gyj¨ bvB| Bnv Qvov Avi ‡Kvb †jb‡`bI bvB| 

 

** †Kv¤úvbxi cÿ ‡_‡K GKwU Mvwo µq Kivi Rb¨ g¨v‡U· evsjv‡`k wjwg‡UW †K 1,406,888/- UvKv cÖ`vb Kiv 

n‡q‡Q| eZ©gv‡b AvšÍt m¤úwK©Z †jb‡`b mgvcbx e¨v‡jÝ I k~Y¨| 

 

7. cvewjK Bmy¨ A_ev ivBU Bmy¨ nB‡Z cÖvß Znwe‡ji e¨envit  

G ermi †Kvb cvewjK Bmy¨ A_ev ivBU Bmy¨ nqwb |  
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8. Bwbwkqvj cvewjK Advwis (AvB.wc.I), wiwcU cvewjK Advwis (Avi. wc. I), ivBU Advi, WvB‡i± wjw÷s 

BZ¨vw` †_‡K A_© ev Znwej cÖvwßi ci †Kv¤úvbxi Avw_©K Ae¯’v t 

1981 mv‡ji Ryb 22, Zvwi‡L Bwbwkqvj cvewjK Advwis (AvB.wc.I) Ges cieZ©x mg‡q 1997 mv‡ji Rvbyqvix,     

11 Zvwi‡L ivBU Advi Kiv nq| Gi ci †_‡K †Kv¤úvbx wbqwgZ fv‡jv K‡i hv‡”Q|  

9. evwl©K Avw_©K weeiYx Ges ‰ÎgvwmK Avw_©K Ae¯’vi weeiYxi g‡a¨ cv_©K¨t 

‰ÎgvwmK Avw_©K Ae ’̄vi weeiYx Ges evwl©K Avw_©K weeiYx g‡a¨ D‡jøL‡hvM¨ cv_©K¨ ‡bB (A_©vr Z…Zxq †KvqvU©vi ch©šÍ 

Avw_©K cÖwZ‡e`‡b †kqvi cÖwZ jvf wQj 7.29 UvKv wKš‘ evrmwiK Bnv 8.91 UvKvq DcbxZ n‡q‡Q)| Bnv n‡q‡Q g~jZ 

cwiPvjbvq `ÿZv e„w×i cvkvcvwk e¨q n«vmKi‡Yi d‡j| 

10. ¯Ẑš¿ cwiPvjK mn cwiPvjK‡`i cvwikªwgKt 

   ¯^Zš¿ cwiPvjK mn cwiPvjK‡`i cvwikªwgK wbgiƒct- 

cwiPvjK‡`i  bvg cwiPvjK/¯̂Zš¿ cwiPvjK evrmwiK cvwikªwgK 

Rbvev kIKZ Aviv Avn‡g`  cwiPvjK 800,000/- 

Rbve Amxg Kygvi eo–qv cwiPvjK 4,200,000/- 

Rbve KvRx dviæK Kv‡`i ¯^Zš¿ cwiPvjK 600,000/- 

 

11. †Kv¤úvbxi e¨e ’̄vcbv KZ…©c¶ KZ…©K cÖ¯‘ZK…Z Avw_©K weeiYx‡Z †Kv¤úvbxi Avw_©K Ae ’̄v, Avw_©K Kvh©µ‡gi djvdj,                      

bM` cÖevn, g~ja‡bi cwieZ©b mwVK fv‡e Dc ’̄vcb Kiv n‡q‡Q| 

12. †Kv¤úvbxi wnmve ewn mg~n h_vh_ fv‡e msi¶Y Kiv n‡q‡Q| 

13. Avw_©K weeiYx cÖ¯‘wZ‡Z h‡_vchy³ wnmvebxwZ mg~n avivevwnK fv‡e cÖ‡qvM Kiv n‡q‡Q Ges wnmveMZ cwigvcK mg~n 

hyw³hy³ I weP¶Y wm×v‡šÍi Dci cÖwZwôZ| 

14. B›Uvib¨vkbvj G¨vKvDw›Us ÷¨vÛv©m (AvB.G.Gm) Ges B›Uvib¨vkbvj wdb¨vbwmqvj wi‡cvwU©s ÷¨vÛv©m 

(AvB.Gd.Avi.Gm) Abymib K‡i Avw_©K weeibx cÖ¯‘Z Kiv n‡q‡Q Ges †Kv_vI †Kvb e¨Z¨q _vK‡j Zvnv h_vh_ 

fv‡e cÖKvk Kiv n‡q‡Q| 

15. Af¨šÍixY wbqš¿Y e¨e¯’v mymsnZ I Kvh©Ki fv‡e ev Í̄evqb I ch©‡e¶Y Kiv n‡q‡Q| 

16. msL¨vjNy †kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i ¯̂v_© iÿvi Rb¨ G ai‡bi †Kvb cwiw¯’wZ DÌvwcZ nqwb| 

17. †Kv¤úvbxi Pjgvb Aw Í̄‡Z¡i mvg†_©¨i ‡¶‡Î †Kvbiƒc m‡›`‡ni AeKvk bvB | 

 

18. MZ erm‡ii cwiPvjbMZ djvd‡ji mwnZ PjwZ erm‡ii e¨eavbt 

 PjwZ erm‡i weµq n«vm †c‡q‡Q cÿvšÍ‡i h_vh_ g~j¨ mgšq̂ Ges `ÿZvi mwnZ KuvPvgvj µq Ges Dchy³ Drcv`‡b 

`ÿZv e„w×i d‡j cwiPvjbMZ djvd‡j †Zgb †Kvb D‡jøL†hvM¨ e¨eavb nqwb |  

 

19. c~e©eZ©x cuvP eQ‡ii g~L¨ cwiPvjb Ges Avw_©K DcvËt 

                                                  ÒmsL¨v nvRvi UvKvqÓ 

weeib  

 

2022-23 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18 

cwiPvjb Z_¨:       

       weµq 2,419,770 3,512,950 2,759,680 2,184,387 1,712,670 1,922,168 

‡gvU gybvdv 266,974 377,598 231,157 189,858 197,054 209,731 

cwiPvjb gybvdv/ (†jvKmvb) 106,179 106,822 91,390 85,399 96,071 102,415 

Kic~e© gybvdv 99,603 77,284 48,104 36,422 38,406 33,931 

KicieZ©x gybvdv/ (†jvKmvb) 50,832 29,316 11,805 10,738 11,781 9,606 

‡kqvi cÖwZ Avq 8.91 5.14 2.07 1.88 2.07 1.69 

c«wZ ‡kqv‡ii Rb¨ jf¨vsk 2.00 2.00 2.00 1.50 2.00 2.00 

 
Avw_©K Z_¨:       

       ‡gvU m®c` 1,164,979 1,239,983 1,453,953 1,714,463 1,682,611 1,872,183 

mgúwË, hšÎúvwZ I hšÎvsk-

‡gvU 

764,692 749,849 732,112 725,427 710,997 705,057 

mgúwË, hšÎúvwZ I hšÎvsk-bxU 76,112 77,439 74,650 84,414 88,988 103,205 

‡gvU PjwZ g~jab 742,719 836,087 1,074,803 1,315,229 1,256,464 1,353,620 

bxU PjwZ g~jab 393,918 369,229 337,906 326,994 325,898 306,141 

PjwZ g~jab FY 1,691 312,870 596,148 754,195 744,293 762,783 

‡kqvi g~jab 57,024 57,024 57,024 57,024 57,024 57,024 

‡kqvi wc«wgqvg 209,088 209,088 209,088 209,088 209,088 209,088 

msi¶Y Ges DØ…Ë 245,171 205,744 187,833 184,581 185,248 184,752 

‡kqvi gvwjK‡`i BKyBwU 776,689 719,541 680,799 687,905 709,206 779,088 

`xN© ‡gqv`x FY - - 5,614 5,232 2,363 2,975 
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20. jf¨vskt 

†Kv¤úvbxi cwiPvjKgÛjx 2022-23 wnmve erm‡i cÖwZ 10/- (`k) UvKvi †kqv‡ii Rb¨ 20 kZvsk A_©vr 2.00 

UvKv nv‡i bM` jf¨vsk cÖ`v‡bi mycvwik K‡i‡Qb | GB evwl©K mvaviY mfvq Avcbv‡`i Aby‡gv`b mv‡c‡¶ ‡mB mg Í̄ 

†kqvi‡nvìvi‡`i jf¨vsk cÖ`vb Kiv n‡e hv‡`i bvg †Kv¤úvbxi m`m¨ ewn†Z A_ev wW‡cv‡RUwi‡Z A‡±vei 26, 

2023 Bs Zvwi‡L Kvh© mgvß mg‡q AšÍ©f~³ _vK‡e | 

 

21. AšÍe©ZxKvjxb jf¨vskt 

      cwiPvjbv cl©` AšÍe©Z©xKvjxb mg‡q †Kvb †evbvm †kqvi ev ÷K jf¨vsk †NvlYv K‡iwb| 

 

22. ‡ev‡W©i mfvt 

     G ermi ‡ev‡W©i 11 (GMvi) wU mfv AbywôZ n‡q‡Q | cwiPvjKM‡Yi Dcw ’̄wZi ZvwjKv wb‡gœ cÖ`Ë njt 

 

cwiPvjKe„‡›`i bvg mfvq Dcw¯’wZ 

Rbve Rûi Avn‡g` wcGBPwW 11 

Rbvev kIKZ Aviv Avn‡g` 03 

Rbve kvnwiqvi Avn‡g` 11 

Rbve gvwni Avn‡g` 08 

Rbve BdvR Avn‡g` 07 

Rbve Amxg Kzgvi eo–qv 11 

Rbve KvRx dviæK Kv‡`i  06 

Rbve Zv‡iK wbRvgDwÏb Avn‡g` 04 

 

23. †kqvi‡nvwìsm msKªvšÍ weeiYt 

bvg Abymv‡i weeiY ‡kqvi msL¨v 

  

K) c¨v‡i›U/ mvewmwWqvix/ G‡mvwm‡q†UW †Kv¤úvbx Ges Ab¨vb¨ m¤úwK©Z cvwU©mgynt 

 

 

      G‡c· w¯úwbs GÛ bxwUs wgjm& wjwg‡UW    169,250 

      G‡c· j¨vbRvix wjwg‡UW       10,800 

    

L) cwiPvjKe„›`, cÖavb wbe©vnx Kg©KZ©v, cÖavb A_© Kg©KZ©v, Af¨šÍixY wbix¶v Kgcøv‡qÝ cÖavb, 

†Kv¤úvbx mwPet 

Rbve Rûi Avn‡g` wcGBPwW cwiPvjK    160,740 

Rbvev kIKZ Aviv Avn‡g` cwiPvjK 988,066 

Rbve kvnwiqvi Avn‡g` cwiPvjK  1,718,894 

Rbve Amxg Kzgvi eo–qv cwiPvjK 7,500 

Rbve Zv‡iK wbRvgDwÏb Avn‡g` ¯^Zš¿ cwiPvjK - 

Rbvev wkDjx ivbx †` cÖavb A_© Kg©KZ©v - 

Rbve Avkxl Kzgvi cvj, GdwmG Af¨šÍixY wbix¶v I Kgcøv‡qÝ cÖavb                                - 

Rbve Kvgiæj Bmjvg  †Kv¤úvbx mwPe                                - 

 

M)  Da¦©Zb Ki‡cv‡iU wbe©vnxMYt            

Rbve gwgb DwÏb Avn‡g` Lvb                     wbe©vnx cwiPvjK 2,450 

     

N)  †Kv¤úvbx†Z 10 kZvsk A_ev Zvi †P‡q †ekx †fv‡Ui AwaKvix †kqvi‡nvìvit 

Rbve kvnwiqvi Avn‡g` 
1,718,894 

Rbvev kIKZ Aviv Avn‡g` 988,066 
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24. †Kv¤úvbxi cwiPvjKe„‡›`i wb‡qvM/cybt wb‡qvMt 

 

Rbve kvnwiqvi Avn‡g` Ges Rbve Amxg Kzgvi eo–qv †Kv¤úvbxi msNwewa †gvZv‡eK ‡evW© †_‡K c`Z¨vM K‡i‡Qb    

Ges †hvM¨ weavq cybtwbe©vP‡bi Rb¨ B”Qv cÖKvk K‡i‡Qb| GQvov I Rbvev kIKZ Aviv Avn‡g` cwiPvjK I Rbve 

Zv‡iK wbRvgDwÏb Avn‡g`, ¯̂Zš¿ cwiPvjK wnmv‡e ‡Kv¤úvbxi cwiPvjbv cl‡ ©̀ wbhy³ n‡q‡Qb | Rbve kvnwiqvi 

Avn‡g`, Rbve Amxg Kzgvi eo–qv, Rbvev kIKZ Aviv Avn‡g` I Rbve Zv‡iK wbRvgDwÏb Avn‡g` Gi we Í̄vwiZ 

weeiY wbgœiƒct- 

 

Rbve kvnwiqvi Avn‡g` : 

 

K) Rbve kvnwiqvi Avn‡g`, hy³iv‡óªi Rbmb GÛ I‡qjm wek¦we`¨vjq nB‡Z GgweG wWMÖx AR©b K‡ib Ges Zvi 

wkÿv Rxeb †kl K‡i 2004 mv‡j wZwb GB †Kv¤úvbx‡Z †hvM`vb K‡ib| wZwb 2004 mvj †_‡K GB wkí Lv‡Z 

KvR Ki‡Qb| GB `xN© mg‡q wZwb GB wkí Lv‡Z Mfxi Ávb AR©b K‡i‡Qb| wZwb GLb GB †Kv¤úvbxi e¨e ’̄vcbv 

cwiPvjK| 

 

L) wZwb GB †Kv¤úvbxi cwiPvjK QvovI 1. G‡c· w¯úwbs GÛ bxwUs wgjm&& wjwg‡UW, 2. G‡c· j¨vbRvwi wjwg‡UW, 3. 

G‡c· Bqvb© WvBs wjwg‡UW, 4. G‡c· †U·UvBj wcÖwUs wgjm& wjwg‡UW, 5. G‡c· d¨vkb Iq¨vi wjwg‡UW 6. G‡c· 

GwMÖmvBÝ wjwg‡UW I 7. g¨v‡U· evsjv‡`k wjwg‡UW-Gi cwiPvjK c‡` wbhy³ Av‡Qb|  

 

M) eZ©gv‡b Rbve kvnwiqvi Avn‡g` AwWU KwgwU Ges bwg‡bkb I wigybv‡ikb KwgwUi GKRb m`m¨| 

 

Rbve Amxg Kzgvi eo–qv : 

 

K) Rbve Amxg Kzgvi eo–qv, XvKv wek¦we`¨vjq †_‡K mœv‡ZvKËi wWMÖx AR©b K‡ib| 1982 mv‡j wZwb GB †Kv¤úvbx‡Z 

†hvM`vb K‡ib| wZwb ‡mB †_‡K GB wkí Lv‡Z KvR Ki‡Qb| GB `xN© mg‡q wZwb GB wkí Lv‡Z Mfxi Ávb AR©b 

K‡i‡Qb| wZwb GLb GB †Kv¤úvbxi cwiPvjK wnmv‡e KvR Ki‡Qb| 

 

L) wZwb Ab¨ †Kvb †Kv¤úvbxi cwiPvjK c‡` wbhy³ †bB| 

 

M) eZ©gv‡b Rbve Amxg Kzgvi eo–qv AwWU KwgwUi GKRb m`m¨| 

 

Rbvev kIKZ Aviv Avn‡g` : 

 

K) Rbvev kIKZ Aviv Avn‡g`, XvKv wek¦we`¨vjq †_‡K ¯œvZK wWMÖx AR©b K‡ib| 1996 mv‡j wZwb GB †Kv¤úvbx‡Z 

†hvM`vb K‡ib| BwZ g‡a¨ wZwb 2014 mvj †_‡K 2022 mvj ch©šÍ e¨w³MZ Kvi‡Y cwiPvjbv cl©‡`i evB‡i wQ‡jb| 

Rbvev kIKZ Aviv Avn‡g` GB wkí Lv‡Z `xN© mgq KvR K‡i‡Qb| GB `xN© mg‡q wZwb GB wkí Lv‡Z Mfxi Ávb 

AR©b K‡i‡Qb| wZwb GLb GB †Kv¤úvbxi cwiPvjK wnmv‡e KvR Ki‡Qb| 

 

L) wZwb GB †Kv¤úvbxi cwiPvjK QvovI 1. G‡c· j¨vbRvwi wjwg‡UW, 2. G‡c· Bqvb© WvBs wjwg‡UW, 3. G‡c· 

†U·UvBj wcÖwUs wgjm& wjwg‡UW, 4. G‡c· d¨vkb Iq¨vi wjwg‡UW 5. G‡c· GwMÖmvBÝ wjwg‡UW I 6. g¨v‡U· 

evsjv‡`k wjwg‡UW-Gi cwiPvjK c‡` wbhy³ Av‡Qb|  

M) wZwb ‡ev‡W©i Ab¨ †Kvb KwgwUi m`m¨ bb| 

 

Rbve Zv‡iK wbRvgDwÏb Avn‡g` : 

 

K)  Rbve Zv‡iK wbRvgDwÏb Avn‡g` g¨v‡bR‡g›U wel‡q PÆMÖvg wek¦we`¨vjq nB‡Z mœv‡ZvKËi wWwMÖ AR©b K‡ib| 

cov‡kvbv †k‡l wZwb 02 AvMó, 1987 mv‡j AvBwmwe†Z Awdmvi c‡` †hvM`vb K‡ib, wZwb AvBwmwe†Z `xN© Kg©Rxe‡b 

wewfbœ ¸iæZ¡c~Y© c‡` AwawôZ wQ‡jb Ges 21 b‡f¤̂i, 2019 mv‡j wZwb †WcywU †Rbv‡ij g¨v‡bRvi wnmv‡e Zuvi PvKwi 

†_‡K Aemi MÖnb K‡ib | wZwb 05 GwcÖj, 2023 Zvwi‡L GB †Kv¤úvbxi ¯̂Zš¿ cwiPvjK wnmv‡e wbhy³ nb| 

 

L) wZwb GB wkí LvZ m¤ú‡K© Mfxi Áv‡bi AwaKvix| 
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M)  wZwb G‡c· w¯úwbs GÛ bxwUs wgjm&& wjwg‡U‡Wi I ¯̂Zš¿ cwiPvjK c‡` wbhy³ n‡q‡Qb|  

 

N) eZ©gv‡b wZwb ‡ev‡W©i AwWU KwgwUi Ges ‡bvwg‡bkb I wigybv‡ikb KwgwUi †Pqvig¨vb| 

 

25. g¨v‡bR‡g›U Av‡jvPbv Ges we‡kølY hvnv e¨e¯’vcbv cwiPvjK KZ…©K ¯v̂ÿwiZ: 

e¨e ’̄vcbv cwiPvjK KZ…©K ¯^vÿwiZ g¨v‡bR‡g›U Av‡jvPbv I we‡kølY hv GB evwl©K cÖwZ‡e`‡b mshy³ ‡Kv¤úvbxi 

Ae¯’vb, Acv‡ikb Ges wek` we‡kølY D‡jøL Kiv n‡q‡Q | 

 

26. GgwW Ges wmGdI KZ…©K ¯v̂ÿwiZ wee„wZ: 

GgwW Ges wmGdI KZ…©K ¯^vÿwiZ wee„wZ AbyMÖnc~e©K Annexure-A co–b| 

 

27. K‡c©v‡iU Mf‡b©Ý Kgcøv‡qÝ cÖwZ‡e`b:  

evsjv‡`k wmwKDwiwUR GÛ G·‡PÄ Kwgk‡bi Pvwn`v Abyhvqx K‡c©v‡iU Mf‡b©Ý cÖwZ‡e`b hv Annexure-B Ges C 

G mshy³ Kiv n‡jv| 

 

28. wewae× wbix¶K wb‡qvM: 

Aemi MÖnbKvix wewae× wbix¶K †gmvm© gv‡jK wmwÏKx Iqvjx, PvU©vW© G¨vKvD›U¨v›Um ‡hvM¨ weavq 2023-2024 wnmve 

erm‡ii Rb¨ Zvnv‡`i‡K wewae× wbix¶K wnmv‡e cybt wb‡qv‡Mi Rb¨ cȪ Íve K‡i‡Qb| 

 

29. Kgcøv‡qÝ wbix¶K wb‡qvM: 

Kgcøv‡qÝ wbix¶K evsjv‡`k wmwKDwiwUR GÛ G·‡PÄ Kwgk‡bi (we.Gm.B.wm) Pvwn`v Abyhvqx, †gmvm© wmivR Luvb 

emvK GÛ †Kv¤úvbx, PvU©vW© G¨vKvD›U¨v›Um& ‡hvM¨ weavq 2023-2024 wnmve erm‡ii K‡c©v‡iU Mf©‡b©Ý Kgcøv‡qÝ mb` 

cÖ̀ v‡bi Rb¨ Kgcøv‡qÝ wbix¶K wnmv‡e, Zvnv‡`i‡K cybt wb‡qv‡Mi Rb¨ cÖ¯Íve K‡i‡Qb| 

 

30. ‡evW© cwiPvjK‡`i mfv: 

cwiPvjK‡`i ‡evW© mfv Ges Bnvi bw_ mg~‡ni msi¶Y BbwówUDU Ae PvU©vW© †m‡µUvixm Ae evsjv‡`k (AvBwmGmwe) 

Abymv‡i Kiv n‡q‡Q | 

 

¯’vb: XvKv †ev‡W©i c‡¶ 

ZvwiL: 03 A‡±vei, 2023 ¯^v/- 

 

 

Rûi Avn‡g` wcGBPwW 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mfvcwZ 
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VALUE ADDED STATEMENT 

 

 

PARTICULARS   2022-23  %  2021-22  %  

      VALUE ADDED 
     

 
  

   
  

Revenue 
 

2,419,769,848 
 

3,512,949,969 
 Less: Bought in Materials & Services 

 
(2,207,162,877) 

 
(3,294,206,424) 

 Add: Indirect Income  22,156,972  17,154,439  

  
------------------- 

 
------------------- 

 
  

234,763,943 
 

235,897,983 
 

  
=========== 

 
=========== 

 APPLICATIONS           

Government as tax 
 

48,770,936 20.77 47,967,193 20.33 
Employees as Salaries Wages & Allowances 95,437,484 40.65 100,873,686 42.76 
Providers of Loan as Interest & Charges 

 
       23,752,400 10.12 42,828,727 18.16 

Providers of Capital as Dividend 
 

      11,404,800 4.86 11,404,800 4.83 
Depreciation & Retention 

 
     55,398,323 23.60     32,823,578 13.92 

  
------------------- --------- ------------------- --------- 

  
234,763,943 100.00 235,897,983 100.00 

  
=========== ===== =========== ===== 
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Independent Auditors’ Report 
To the Shareholders of Apex Foods Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion: 
 

We have audited the financial statements of Apex Foods Limited which comprise the 
financial position as at June 30, 2023, the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other 
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for 
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give true and fair view, in all material 
respects, of the financial position of the Company as at June 30, 2023, and its financial 
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the company act 1994, the Security and Exchange 
Rules 1987 and other applicable law and regulations. 

 
Basis for Opinion: 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ 
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 
Emphasis of Matter: 
 

1. We draw attention to Note 3.03 and 09 of the financial statements, which describes the 
investment in Apex Weaving & Finishing Mills Ltd. is under litigation in the civil suit no. 
191 (F) of 2018 with the honorable High Court Division. 
 

2. We draw attention to Note 14 of the financial statements, which describes the insurance 
claim of Tk. 16,254,727 is under litigation and pending with the High Court Division.  

 

Our report is not qualified in above respect.  
 

Key Audit Matters: 
 

Risk Our response 

Revenue recognition 

At the year ended, the company’s reported total 
revenue of Tk. 2,419,769,848. 
 
Revenue is measured net of trade discount and 
VAT. Time of revenue recognition is matter. The 
revenue may overstated for the early recognition 
of revenue to achieve the desire result. 

We have tested the design and operating 
effectiveness of key controls focusing on the 
following: 

 Policy of revenue recognition: 

 Issuance of VAT challan; 

 Segregation of duties in invoice creation 
and modification; and 

 Timing of revenue recognition. 

 
Our substantive procedures in relation to the 
revenue recognition comprises the following: 

 Obtaining supporting documentation for 
sales transactions recorded either side of 
year end as well as credit notes issued 
after the year end date to determine 
whether revenue was recognized in the 
correct period; 

 VAT is correctly dealt with; 
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Risk Our response 

 Critically assessing manual journals 
posted to revenue to identify unusual or 
irregular items; and 

 Finally assessed the appropriateness and 
presentation of disclosures against          
relevant         accounting Standards. 

Please see the note 29 in this financial statements. 

Valuation of inventory 
The balance of inventory of the Company at the 
year-end was Tk. 129,125,300 held in the 
company’s warehouse.  
 
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and 
net realizable value. As a result, the Directors 
apply judgment in determining the appropriate 
values for slow-moving or obsolete items. 

We challenged the appropriateness of 
management’s assumptions applied in 
calculating the value of the inventory and 
related provisions by: 
 

• evaluating the design and 
implementation of key inventory controls 
operating across the Company in respect 
of inventory management; 

• to attend the physical inventory counts 
and reconciling the count results to the 
inventory listings to test the 
completeness of data; 

• to review the inventory costing 
procedures and methodology. 

• comparing the net realizable value, 
obtained through a detailed review of 
sales subsequent to the year-end, to the 
cost price of a sample of inventories and 
comparison to the associated provision 
to assess whether inventory provisions 
are complete; 

• reviewing the historical accuracy of 
inventory provisioning, and the level of 
inventory write-offs during the year; and 

• Challenging the completeness of 
inventory provisions through assessing 
actual and forecast sales of inventory 
lines to assess whether provisions for 
slow- moving/obsolete stock are valid 
and complete. 

Please see the note 11 in this financial statements. 

Measurement and recognition of deferred tax 
The balance of reported deferred tax liability of 
the company was Tk. 39,488,682 as on June 30, 
2023. 
 
The risk for the financial statements is that these 
provisions may not properly measured for all 
types of temporary difference as per IAs 12: 
Income Tax. 

We obtained an understanding, evaluated 
the design and tested the operational 
effectiveness of the Company’s key controls 
over the recognition and measurement of 
deferred tax. 
 

We have assessed the appropriateness of 
the carrying amounts of net asset value as 
per tax base and accounting base. 
 

We have also assessed the rate of 
deferred for each temporary difference. 
 

Also, we examined the accounting 
treatment of deferred tax. 

Please see the note 21 in this financial statements. 
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Other Information:  
 

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. We have not been provided the Director’s report and other 
information contained within the annual report except the financial statements to the date of our 
auditor’s report. We expect to obtain the remaining reports of the Annual report after the date of our 
auditor’s report. Management is responsible for the other information. 
 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the 
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements and Internal Controls 
 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with IFRSs as explained, and for such internal control as management determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The Companies Act, 1994 require the Management to 
ensure effective internal audit, internal control and risk management functions of the Company. 
 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or 
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process. 
 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the  financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error, design and perform audit  procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the  
override of internal control. 
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. 

 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern.  If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 
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 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 
business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the financial statements. We 
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the company audit. We remain 
solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication. 
 
Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 
In accordance with the Companies Act 1994 and the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, we also 
report the following: 
 
a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof; 
 

b) in our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as it appeared from our examination of these books; 

 
c) the statements of financial position and statement of comprehensive income dealt with by the 

report are in agreement with the books of accounts and returns; and 
 

d) the expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the Company’s business. 

 
 

 
            Malek Siddiqui Wali, Chartered Accountants 

                 
 
 
              Sd/- 
Dated, Dhaka                     Md. Waliullah, FCA 
October 08, 2023                    Enrolment No: 0247 

Data Verification Code (DVC) No:      2310080247AS511894        
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 30TH JUNE, 2023 

     Value in Taka 
        NOTES      30.06.2023  30.06.2022  
 

ASSETS 
            Non-Current Assets: 
  

422,259,246 
 

403,896,709 

 
Property, Plant and Equipment 8 

 
76,111,905 

 
77,439,208 

 Investments  9  340,144,610  320,454,770 
 Security Deposits 10  6,002,731  6,002,731 

       Current Assets: 
  

742,719,268 
 

836,086,935 

 
Inventories 11 

 
129,125,300 

  
261,341,483 

 
Trade Receivables 12 

 
82,333,352 

 
44,826,338 

 
Advance, Deposits & Prepayments 13 

 
70,578,157 

  
33,592,988 

 
Other Receivables 14 

 
110,844,619 

 
268,968,573 

 
Investment in Financial Assets 15 

 
291,153,690 

 
224,136,999 

 
Cash & Cash Equivalents 16 

 
58,684,150 

 
3,220,554 

    
-------------------- 

 
------------------- 

TOTAL ASSETS 
  

1,164,978,514 
 

1,239,983,644 
   ===========  =========== 

       EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
            Shareholders' Equity: 
  

776,688,845 
 

719,540,884 

 
Share Capital 17 

 
57,024,000 

 
57,024,000 

 
Share Premium 18 

 
209,088,000 

 
209,088,000 

 
Reserve and Surplus 19 

 
245,171,380 

 
205,744,275 

 
Fair Valuation Surplus of Investments 20 

 
265,405,465 

 
247,684,609 

       
Non-Current Liabilities: 

  
39,488,682 

 
53,585,135 

 
Deferred Tax Liabilities 21 

 
39,488,682 

 
53,585,135 

              Current Liabilities: 
  

348,800,987 
 

466,857,625 

 
Working Capital Loan (Secured) 22 

 
1,690,879 

 
312,870,481 

 
Long Term Loan-Current Maturity 23 

 
- 

 
2,087,880 

 
Short Term Loan 24 

 
- 

 
7,216,806 

 
Trade Payables 25 

 
258,239,113 

 
56,489,907 

 
Other Payables 26 

 
22,895,905 

 
56,085,880 

 
Current Tax Liabilities 27 

 
64,776,310 

 
30,796,983 

 
Unclaimed Dividend Account 28 

 
1,198,780 

 
1,309,688 

       Total Liabilities 
  

388,289,669 
 

520,442,760 

    
------------------- 

 
------------------- 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
  

1,164,978,514 
 

1,239,983,644 
   =========== 

 
 =========== 

       Net Assets Value (NAV) Per Share 41 
 

136.20 
 

126.18 

       
 
 

 

Annexed notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.        
 

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- 
Shahriar Ahmed Ashim Kumar Barua Sheuli Rani Dey 
Managing Director Director Chief Financial Officer 
Signed in terms of our report of even date.    

 Malek Siddique Wali, Chartered Accountants 
 

                                                   Sd/- 

Place: Dhaka   Md. Waliullah, FCA 

Dated: October 08, 2023  Enrolment No: 0247 
DVC:2310080247AS511894 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND  
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE, 2023  

 

     Value in Taka 
      

  NOTES  2022-2023   2021-2022 
  

  

REVENUE 29 2,419,769,848 
 

3,512,949,969 

 
Cost of goods sold 30 (2,152,795,726) 

 
(3,135,351,675) 

      GROSS PROFIT 
 

266,974,122 
 

377,598,294 

       Other operating income / (loss) 34 198,480  35,844 

 
Administrative & selling overhead 35 (160,994,192) 

 
(270,812,163) 

      OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) 
 

106,178,411 
 

106,821,975 

 
Finance & Other Income 36 22,156,972 

 
17,154,439 

 
Financial expenses 37 (23,752,400) 

 
(42,828,727) 

PROFIT BEFORE PPF & WF 
 

104,582,982 
 

81,147,687 

 
Provision for contribution to PPF & WF 38 (4,980,142) 

 
(3,864,176) 

     
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 

 
99,602,840 

 
77,283,511 

      

 
Tax expenses: 39 (48,770,936) 

 
(47,967,193) 

 
Current tax                                         (A) 

 
(64,776,310) 

 
(30,796,983) 

 Under Provision of Tax                      (B)  (60,064)   

 
Deferred tax (expenses) / income     (C) 

 
16,065,438 

 
(17,170,210) 

     
NET PROFIT / (LOSS) AFTER TAX 

 
50,831,905 

 
29,316,318 

 
Other comprehensive income: 

    
 

Fair valuation surplus/(deficit) of investments 20 17,720,856  20,830,500 

 
Fair valuation surplus/(deficit) during the year  19,689,840  23,145,000 

 
Deferred tax income/(expense) on share valuation surplus  (1,968,984)  (2,314,500) 

     

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
 

68,552,761 
 

50,146,818 

      
Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS) 

     
40 8.91 

 
5.14 

  
Annexed notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.        

 
Sd                                                Sd/-                                                Sd/- 
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- 
Shahriar Ahmed Ashim Kumar Barua Sheuli Rani Dey 
Managing Director Director Chief Financial Officer 
      
Signed in terms of our report of even date. 
 
 Malek Siddique Wali, Chartered Accountants 

               Sd/- 

Place: Dhaka   Md. Waliullah, FCA 

Dated: October 08, 2023  Enrolment No: 0247 

  DVC:2310080247AS511894 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE, 2023 
 

                                                                                                                           Value in Taka 
Particulars Share Share Tax Holiday Retained Capital Fair Total 

 Capital Premium Reserve Earnings Gain Valuation  
      Surplus  
As at 30th June 2022 57,024,000 209,088,000 51,162,905 153,974,370 607,000 247,684,609 719,540,884 

Net profit after tax of 2022-23 - - - 50,831,905 - - 50,831,905 

Final dividend for the year 2021-22 - - - (11,404,800) - -     (11,404,800) 

Fair valuation surplus/(deficit) of 
Investments 

- - - - - 17,720,856        17,720,856 

As at 30th June 2023 57,024,000 209,088,000 51,162,905 193,401,475 607,000 265,405,465 776,688,845 

 
 
 
 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE, 2022 

 
Particulars Share Share Tax Holiday Retained Capital Fair Total 

 Capital Premium Reserve Earnings Gain Valuation  
      Surplus  
As at 30th June 2021 57,024,000 209,088,000 51,162,905 136,062,852 607,000 226,854,109      680,798,866 

Net profit after tax of 2021-22 - - - 29,316,318 - - 29,316,318 

Final dividend for the year 2020-21 - - - (11,404,800) - -     (11,404,800) 

Fair valuation surplus/(deficit) of 
Investments 

- - - - - 20,830,500        20,830,500 

As at 30th June 2022 57,024,000 209,088,000 51,162,905 153,974,370 607,000 247,684,609 719,540,884 

 
 
 

Annexed notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.        
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- 
Shahriar Ahmed Ashim Kumar Barua Sheuli Rani Dey 
Managing Director Director Chief Financial Officer 
      
 
Signed in terms of our report of even date. 
 

 
 
 

Malek Siddique Wali, Chartered Accountants 
 

                                                    Sd/- 

Place: Dhaka   Md. Waliullah, FCA 

Dated: October 08, 2023  Enrolment No: 0247 

  DVC:2310080247AS511894 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE, 2023 

       Value in Taka 
      
  NOTES          2022-2023           2021-2022 
    

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:    

 Collection from revenue 2,352,727,977  3,692,393,494 
 Income from SND 275  306 
 Other Income from foreign exchange gain / (loss) from operation 212,220  - 
 Bank Charges & Commission (8,143,707)  (9,956,796) 

 Received from PF Lapse (employer’s portion) 243,887  234,581 

 Income tax paid during the year (65,113,766)  (31,414,487) 

 Payment for costs and expenses (1,813,249,854)  (3,296,902,366) 

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities (a) 466,677,032  354,354,732 
     CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:    

 Property, plant and equipment acquired (14,569,499)  (17,811,665) 
 Investment in Financial Assets (67,016,691)  (9,564,494) 
 Financial Income from FDRs 12,193,386  12,160,472 
 Other Income from Dividend 5,954,352  5,954,352 

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities (b) (63,438,452)  (9,261,335) 
     CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:    

 Working capital loan received/(repaid) (311,179,602)  (283,277,474) 

 Long term loan received/(repaid) (2,087,880)  (3,526,592) 

 Short term loan received/(repaid) (7,216,806)  (1,802,437) 

 Payment on Lease Liabilities -  (1,485,839) 

 Interest  & Other financial charges paid (15,761,248)  (32,686,602) 

 Dividend Paid during the year (11,515,708)  (22,013,683) 

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities (c) (347,761,244)  (344,792,627) 
     Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (a+b+c) 55,477,336  300,771 

Cash and cash equivalents on opening 3,220,554                      2,883,939                     

The effect of foreign exchange translation gain/(loss) (13,740)  35,844 

Cash and cash equivalents on closing 58,684,150  3,220,554 
  ========   ======== 
Net operating cash flows per share (NOCFPS)   42     81.84  62.14 
 

Annexed notes form an integral part of these Financial Statements.       

 

 

   

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- 
Shahriar Ahmed Ashim Kumar Barua Sheuli Rani Dey 
Managing Director Director Chief Financial Officer 
      
Signed in terms of our report of even date.                                                  

   
   

 Malek Siddique Wali, Chartered Accountants 
             Sd/- 

Place: Dhaka   Md. Waliullah, FCA 

Dated: October 08, 2023  Enrolment No: 0247 

  DVC:2310080247AS511894 
 
 

 Please refer to Annexure-1 for reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities under direct 
method and indirect method as per requirement of Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission 
(BSEC). 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE, 2023 

 

1. The company and its operation: 
 

1.01 Legal Form of the Enterprise: 
 

Apex Foods Limited is a Public Limited Company registered under the Companies Act, 1913 
(Repealed in 1994). The Company was incorporated in Bangladesh vide its RJSC registration 
No. C-6841(571) dated 21.03.1979. Shares of the Company are listed in the Dhaka Stock 
Exchange Ltd. and Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd. in Bangladesh. 

 

1.02 Address of Registered Office and Factory: 
 

The Registered Office is located at Shanta Skymark, Level-8th to 13th, 18 Gulshan Avenue, 
Gulshan, Dhaka-1212 and the Factory is located at 51-B Shagarika Road, Fouzderhat 
Industrial Estate, Pahartali, and Chattogram. 

 

1.03 Nature of Business Activities: 
 

The Company owns and operates a modern Shrimps Processing Plant and exports 100% of 
its products in the foreign markets. 
 
2. Basis of the preparation of the Financial Statements: 

 

2.01 Accounting Convention and Basis: 
 

These Financial Statements have been prepared under the Historical Cost Convention, 
accrual and Going Concern basis in accordance with applicable International Accounting 
Standards (IASs) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) which do not vary 
from the requirements of the Companies Act, 1994 and the Listing Regulations of the Stock 
Exchanges, The Securities & Exchange Rules, 2020 and other laws and rules applicable in 
Bangladesh. 

 

2.02 Application of International Accounting Standards (IASs) and International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs): 

 

To comply with ICAB guideline, the following IASs and IFRSs are applicable for the financial 
statements for the year under review: 
 

 IAS-1  Presentation of Financial Statements 

 IAS-2    Inventories 

 IAS-7    Statement of Cash Flows   

 IAS-8    Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 

 IAS-10 Events after the Reporting Period 

 IAS-12 Income Taxes 
 IAS-16   Property, Plant and Equipment 

 IAS-21   The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates 

 IAS-23   Borrowing Costs 

 IAS-24   Related Party Disclosures 

 IAS-33   Earnings Per Share 
 IAS-36 Impairment of Assets 
 IAS-37   Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

 

 

 IFRS-7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures 

  IFRS-9 Financial Instruments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IFRS-15 Revenue from contracts with customers 

 

 

 

 

 

 IFRS-16 Leases 
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2.03 Compliance with local laws:  
 

The Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with requirements of the 
Companies Act, 1994, The Securities & Exchange Rules, 2020, The Income Tax Act, 
2023, Income Tax Rules, 2023. The Value Added Tax and Supplementary Duty Act, 
2012, The Value Added Tax and Supplementary Duty Rules, 2016 and other relevant 
local laws and rules. 

 
2.04 Compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs):  
 

The Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with requirements of 
IFRSs. 

 
3. Significant Accounting Policy: 
 
3.01 Property, Plant and Equipment: 
 

These are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation in accordance with 
IAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”. 

 
3.01(i) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment: 
 

Depreciation is provided to amortize the cost of the assets after commissioning, over 
the period of their expected useful lives, in accordance with the provisions of IAS 16: 
Property, Plant and Equipment. Depreciation is provided for the period in use of the 
assets. Depreciation is calculated on the cost of fixed assets in order to write off such 
amounts over the estimated useful lives of such assets. Depreciation has been charged 
on additions made during the year from the month in which those assets are ready to 
use. Depreciation is charged on all fixed assets except Land & Land Development at 
the following rates on reducing balance basis over the periods appropriate to the 
estimated useful lives of the different types of assets:  

 
The rates of depreciation of each class of assets are as follows: 

 
Factory Building 20 % 
Plant & Machinery 20 % 

    Factory Equipments 20 % 
    Furniture & Fixtures 10 % 
    Office Equipments 20 % 
    Motor Vehicles 20 % 
    Crockeries 20 % 

 
3.01(ii) Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment: 
 

On disposal of fixed assets, the cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated and 
gain or loss on such disposal is reflected in the income statement, which is determined 
with reference to the net book value of the assets and sales proceeds. There was no 
disposal of any Property, Plant and Equipment during the year 2022-23. 

 
3.02 Inventories: 
 

Inventories in hand have been valued at lower of cost or net realizable value in 
accordance with IAS 2 “Inventories” after making due allowance for any obsolete or 
slow moving items. The cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, cost of 
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location 
& condition.  
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3.03 Investments: 

 
 Basis of fair value measurement: 

 
As fair value is a market based measurement, when measuring the fair value of an 
investment we considered the market value on Investments on reporting date. 

 
Apex Weaving & Finishing Mills Limited’s shares were traded to the DSE & CSE in the 
category of OTC Market till 2021. Apex Weaving & Finishing Mills Limited’s shares 
trading category was changed from OTC to SME Market during FY 2021-2022. Since 
the company has an Investments in shares in Apex Weaving & Finishing Mills Limited, 
which is under litigation vide the civil suit no.191 (F) of 2018 with the Honorable High 
Court Division, the company has measured the value of the investment by applying 
cost approach rather than the fair market value approach. 

 
3.04 Current and non-current assets and liabilities: 
 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based 
on current and non-current classification. 

 
An asset is current when it is: 
 

i) Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; 

ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading; 

iii) Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a 

      liability for at least twelve months. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 
 
A liability is current when it is: 
 

i) Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; 

ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading; 

iii) Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve  

      months after the reporting period. 

The company classified all other liabilities as non-current. 
 

Deferred tax assets/liabilities are classified as non-current assets/liabilities. 
 
3.05 Taxation: 

Provision for income tax has been made as per requirements of the Income Tax Act, 
2023 and Income Tax Rules, 2023.  

 
3.06 Income Tax: 

 
The Company is a Publicly Traded, since the Company is a 100% export oriented Sea 
Food Processing Industry, as per the Income Tax Act, 2023 there is a tax rebate, the 
tax provision has been made 12% (i.e. tax rate is 20% on business profit) or tax 
deducted at source on export proceeds realized or tax on gross receipts during the 
period U/S 163 (2 Ka,Kha), 163 (5-Kh-Uho) and provision has been made accordingly. 
However, the tax provision has been made @ 20% on interest income, dividend 
income, PF Lapse receivable & 10% of cash incentive realization as per provision of 
Income Tax Act, 2023 and the Income Tax rules, 2023. 
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3.07 Deferred Tax: 

 
Deferred tax assets or deferred tax liabilities have been accounted for in accordance 
with IAS 12 “Income Taxes”. Deferred tax arises due to temporary difference, 
deductible or taxable for the events or transactions recognized in the statement of 
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. A temporary difference is the 
difference between the tax base of an asset or liability and its carrying 
amount/reported amount in the financial statement. Deferred tax asset or liability is the 
amount of income tax payable or recoverable in future period(s) recognized in the 
current period. The deferred tax asset/income or liability/expense does not create a 
legal liability/recoverability to and from the Income Tax Authority.  

 
3.08 Trade Receivables: 

 
Trade bills receivables consist of export bill not negotiated with bank within 
30.06.2023. Export bills receivables are recognized initially at the original invoice 
value. 

 
3.09 Payables and Accrued Expenses: 
 

Liabilities are recognized for amounts to be paid in future for goods and services 
received whether or not billed by the suppliers.  

 
3.10 Earnings Per Share: 

 
The Company calculates Earnings Per Share (EPS) in accordance with IAS 33 
“Earnings Per Share” which has been shown on the face of statement of profit or loss 
and other comprehensive income and the computation of EPS is stated in Note 40. 

 
3.11(i) Basic Earnings: 
 

This represents earnings for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders. There was 
no preference dividend and minority interest. The net profit after tax for the year has 
been considered as fully attributable to the ordinary shareholders. 

 
3.11(ii) Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares outstanding during the Year: 

 
This represents the number of ordinary shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 
plus the number of ordinary shares issued during the year multiplied by a time-
weighting factor. The time-weighting factor is the number of days the specific shares is 
outstanding as a proportion of the total number of days in the period. 

 
3.11(iii) Basic Earnings Per Share: 

 
This has been calculated by dividing the basic earnings by the weighted average 
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. 

 
3.11(iv) Diluted Earnings Per Share: 

 
No diluted EPS is required to be calculated for the year, as there was no scope for 
dilution during the year under review. 

 
3.12 Statement of Cash Flows: 

 
         Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared in accordance with IAS 7 “Statement of 

Cash Flows” and the cash flows from the operating activities have been presented under 
direct method as required by the Securities and Exchange Rules, 2020 and considering 



APEX FOODS LIMITED                                                                     Annual Report 2022-23 

53 

 

the provisions of paragraph 19 of IAS 7 which provides that “Entities are Encouraged to 
Report Cash Flows from Operating Activities using the Direct Method”. Reconciliation of 
cash flow from operating activities under direct method & indirect method has been 
given in Annexure-1. 

 
3.13 Foreign Exchange: 

 
Foreign currencies are converted into Bangladesh Taka at the rates ruling on the date of 
transaction and the balance in hand at the close of the business, at the rate prevailing 
on the Statement of Financial Position date in accordance with IAS 21 “The Effects of 
Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”. The Closing conversion rate of USD was Tk. 
107.00. 

  
3.14 Revenue Recognition: 

 
IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much 
and when revenue is recognized. IFRS 15 is effective for annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after 1st January 2018, with early adoption permitted. Revenue from 
contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are 
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the 
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods. The sale proceeds are 
accounted for upon shipments and after satisfying all other conditions for revenue 
recognition as provided in IFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”. 

 
3.15 Other Income Recognition: 
 

Other incomes have been recognized on accrual basis. 
 

3.16 Employee Benefit Obligations: 
 

The Company operates a contributory provident fund and a Group insurance scheme for 
its permanent employees. A Board of Trustee administrates the provident fund.  

 
3.17 Contribution to PPF & WF: 
 

This is being calculated at 5% of the net profit after charging such contribution provided 
as per provisions of the Bangladesh Labor Act, 2006 (amended 2013 & 2017) and 
Bangladesh Labor Rules, 2015 and is payable to workers’ as defined in the said Act. 

 
3.18 Risk and uncertainties for use of estimates in preparation of Financial Statements: 

 
Preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with the International Accounting 
Standards (IASs) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) requires 
management to make estimates and assumption that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and revenues and expenses during the period reported. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. Estimates are used for accounting of certain 
items such as long term contracts, depreciation and amortization, employees benefit 
plans, taxes, reserves and contingencies. 

 
4. Financial Risk Management: 

 
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of 
the Company’s financial risk management. The responsibility also includes developing 
and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. To assist the Board in 
discharging its oversight responsibility, management has been made responsible for 
identifying, monitoring and managing the Company’s financial risk exposures. The 



APEX FOODS LIMITED                                                                     Annual Report 2022-23 

54 

 

Company’s exposure to the risks associated with the financial instruments and the risk 
management policies and procedures are summarized as follows: 

 Credit risk 

 Liquidity risk 

 Market risk 

 Price risk 

 Interest rate risk 

 Currency risk 
 
4.01  Credit risk: 

 
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an 
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss, without taking into account 
the fair value of any collateral. Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of 
counter parties are engaged in similar business activities or have similar economic 
features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly 
affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit 
risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company’s performance to developments 
affecting a particular industry. As the Company is 100% export oriented so the major 
customers of the Company are in USA, Netherlands, Russia, Belgium, Germany, UK, 
Ukraine, Canada, and Japan. 

 
The Trade Receivables are due from foreign customers for export. The balances from 
foreign customers are secured against firm contracts/letters of credit. Management 
assesses the credit quality of foreign customers, taking into account their financial 
position, past experience and other factors. Trade receivable balances & the balances as 
on 30.06.2023 has subsequently been fully realized. For bank balances, financial 
institutions with strong credit ratings are accepted. Credit risk on bank balances is limited 
as these are placed with banks having good credit ratings.  

 
4.02 Liquidity risk: 

 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations 
as they fall due. The company's approach to managing liquidity (Investment in financial 
assets, cash and cash equivalents) is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always 
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed 
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the company's 
reputation. Typically, the company ensures that it has sufficient Investment in financial 
assets & cash and cash equivalents to meet expected operational expenses, including 
financial obligation through preparation of the cash flow forecast, prepared based on time 
line of payment of the financial obligation and accordingly arrange for sufficient 
liquidity/fund to make the expected payment within due date. 

 
In extreme stressed conditions, the company may get support from the related company 
in the form of short term financing but till to date this was not required as the Company 
has not faced such a situation. 

 
4.03 Market risk: 

 
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, 
interest rates and equity prices will affect the Company’s income or the value of its 
holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage 
and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters while optimizing returns. 
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4.04 Price risk: 

 
Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest 
rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the 
individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial 
instruments traded in the market. The company does not have any financial instrument 
that expose the price risk. 

 
 
4.05  Interest rate risk: 

 
Interest rate risk is the risk that arises due to changes in interest rates on borrowing. 
There was no such foreign currency loan which is subject to floating rates of interest. 
Local loans are, however, not significantly affected by fluctuations in interest rates. The 
Company has not entered into any type of derivative instrument in order to hedge 
interest rate risk as at the reporting date. 

 
4.06 Currency risk: 
 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly 
where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered in foreign currencies. 
The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk on export and import though the 
import is very nominal, which, are entered in a currency other than BDT. The foreign 
currency transactions are mainly occurred in USD. 

 
5. Capital risk Management: 
 

The objective of the Company when managing capital, i.e., its shareholders’ equity is to 
safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide 
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and to maintain a strong 
capital base to support the sustained development of its businesses. The Company 
manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments 
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the 
capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders 
or issue new shares. 

 
6. Operating segments: 

  

 These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of single reportable 
segment. 
 

 All non-current assets of the Company as at 30th June 2023 are located in 
Bangladesh. 

 
7. Others: 

 
7.01 Comparative Information: 
 

Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of the year 2021-22 for all 
numerical information of the financial statements and also the narrative and descriptive 
information when it is relevant for understanding of the current period’s financial 
statements. 

 
Last year's figures have been rearranged where considered necessary to conform to 
current year’s presentation. 
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7.02 Reporting currency and level of precision: 
 
The figures in the financial statements represent Bangladesh Currency (Taka), which have 
been rounded-off to nearest Taka. 
 
7.03 Reporting period: 
 
Financial Statements of the Company cover one financial year from 1st July to 30th June. 
 
7.04 Components of the Financial Statements: 
 
The Financial Statements include the following components as per IAS 1 “Presentation of 
Financial Statements”. 
 

i) Statement of Financial Position as at 30th June, 2023. 

ii) Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 

30th June, 2023. 

iii) Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 30th June, 2023. 

iv) Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30th June, 2023 and 

v) Notes to the financial statements. 

 

7.05 Authorization of the Financial Statements: 
 
            Financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the 

Company in its Board Meeting held on 03 October, 2023. 
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8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT: TK. 76,111,905 

 

 
 
 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT FOR 2021-22 
 

 
    

 Cash Credit (Hypo) was taken from Agrani Bank Limited, Agrabad Corporate Branch, Jahan 
Building, Agrabad C/A, Chattogram, which is fully secured against 1st charge on Land, 
Building, Plant & Machinery and all other Assets of the Company. 

  
 
 
 
 
 

SL 
NO. PARTICULAR 

COST 
RATE 

% 

DEPRECIATION W.D.V. 
 

as at 
30.06.23 

Balance as at 
01.07.22 

Addition 
during the 

year 
Balance as 
at 30.06.23 

Balance as 
at 01.07.22 

For the 
year 

Balance as 
at 30.06.23 

1 Land & Land Development 3,392,470 - 3,392,470  - - - 3,392,470 

2 Factory Building 103,288,501 3,319,542 
 

106,608,043 20 93,577,436 2,175,171 95,752,607 10,855,436 

3 Plant & Machinery 551,128,098 9,180,446 560,308,544 20 496,986,140 11,965,121 508,951,261 51,357,283 

4 Factory Equipments 42,153,335 343,212 42,496,547 20 36,779,909 1,108,078 37,887,987 4,608,560 

5 Furniture & Fixtures 14,687,895 448,545 15,136,440 10 11,828,668 326,396 12,155,064 2,981,376 

6 Office Equipments 17,942,405 143,763 18,086,168 20 16,217,181 360,182 16,577,363 1,508,805 

7 Motor Vehicles 16,945,243 1,406,888 18,352,131 20 16,742,944 228,045 16,970,989 1,381,142 

8 Crockeries 311,272 - 311,272 20 277,732 6,708 284,440 26,832 

Total 749,849,219 14,842,396 764,691,615  672,410,010 16,169,700 688,579,710 76,111,905 
          

      Charged  to:    

     Factory Overhead  15,248,369 

     Administrative & selling overhead      921,331  

       16,169,700 

SL 
NO. PARTICULAR 

COST 
RATE 

% 

DEPRECIATION 
W.D.V. 

 
as at 30.06.22 

Balance as 
at 01.07.21 

Addition 
during the 

year 
Balance as 
at 30.06.22 

Balance as 
at 01.07.21 

For the 
year 

Balance as 
at 30.06.22 

1 Land & Land Development 3,392,470 - 3,392,470  - - - 3,392,470 

2 Factory Building 100,355,637 2,932,864 103,288,501 20 91,691,619 1,885,817 93,577,436 9,711,065 

3 Plant & Machinery 538,956,652 12,171,446 551,128,098 20 485,884,249 11,101,891 496,986,140 54,141,958 

4 Factory Equipments 39,678,101 2,475,234 42,153,335 20 35,607,453 1,172,456 36,779,909 5,373,426 

5 Furniture & Fixtures 14,659,915 27,980 14,687,895 10 11,512,086 316,582 11,828,668 2,859,227 

6 Office Equipments 17,824,280 118,125 17,942,405 20 15,802,720 414,461 16,217,181 1,725,224 

7 Motor Vehicles 16,945,243 - 16,945,243 20 16,692,369 50,575 16,742,944 202,299 

8 Crockeries 300,057 11,215 311,272 20 271,608 6,124 277,732 33,540 

 Total 732,112,355 17,736,864 749,849,219  657,462,104 14,947,906 672,410,010 77,439,208 

          

      Charged  to:    

     Factory Overhead  14,160,164  

     Administrative & selling overhead      787,742  

       14,947,906 
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  30.06.2023  30.06.2022 
  
9. INVESTMENTS: TK. 340,144,610 

 In Shares:                             Cost value    

 Apex Spinning & Knitting Mills Limited            22,632,000 317,526,960  297,837,120 

 (2,263,200 Shares of Tk. 10.00 each) at par    

 Apex Weaving & Finishing Mills Limited          20,000,000 20,000,000  20,000,000 

 (2,000,000 Shares of Tk. 10.00 each) at par    

 Amam Sea Food Industries Limited                  1,048,200 1,048,200  1,048,200 

 (10,482 Shares of Tk. 100.00 each at par)    

 Central Depositary Bangladesh Limited            1,569,450 1,569,450  1,569,450 

 
(571,181 Shares of Tk. 10/- each including 414,236 Bonus  
Shares and 56,945 Right Shares @ Tk. 10/- each) at par  

 

 
 -------------- ----------------

-- 

 ----------------
-                                                                                            45,249,650 340,144,610  320,454,770 

                                                                    ========                   
-- 

=========
===== 

 =========
=  

Market Price of Listed Companies Shares (As on 30.06.2023): 
Apex Spinning & Knitting Mills Ltd. (Last trade date 30.06.2023)        140.30  131.60  
Amam Sea Food Industries Ltd. (Last trade date 02.01.2011)       219  219  

 
  Investments in shares of Apex Spinning & Knitting Mills Limited has been valued at market 

price on 30.06.2023 as per IFRS- 9, ‘’Financial Instruments”. 
 

  As the shares of Amam Sea Food Industries Limited had not traded during the year under 
review and the last trade date was on 02.01.2011, the price has been shown at face value. 
 

  Investments in Apex Weaving & Finishing Mills Ltd. is under litigation, the civil suit no.191 (F) 
of 2018 with the Honorable High Court Division. The case is being advocated by Mr. Masudur 
Rahman, Barrister-at-Law, Advocate, Appellate Division, Supreme Court of Bangladesh. On 
his present status report on September 07, 2023, he mentioned that: Paper book has been 
prepared attempted for fixing the matter for final hearing. He is confident on winning the case. 

 

10. SECURITY DEPOSITS: TK. 6,002,731 
    
       Security Deposits to Bangladesh Power Development Board         903,000           903,000 

       Security Deposits for Office Rent         405,000           405,000 
       Security Deposits for TNT & Mobile             8,900               8,900 

       Security Deposits to BGSL/Karnaphuli Gas Distribution Co. Ltd.      4,685,831        4,685,831 

  -------------    --------------- 
    6,002,731      6,002,731 
 ========  ========= 

 Security Deposits are made to above statutory bodies and hence secured.  
 

11. INVENTORIES: TK. 129,125,300 
 

 Qty. in Kg.     
      
Shrimps (Finished Goods) 268,396  120,483,258  248,744,344 
Packing Materials  -  3,746,726  3,777,339 
Chemical & Ingredients -  4,895,316      8,819,800 
 ----------    ---------------

-- 
 ----------------

-  268,396  129,125,300  261,341,483 
 ======  =========

=   
=========

= 

 =========
====  

 The above Inventories are as per physical checking made, valued and certified by the 
Internal Auditors and Management.   

 Inventories in hand have been valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.  
 The Company is availing working capital loan facilities against pledge of finished 

goods. 
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12. TRADE RECEIVABLES: TK. 82,333,352 
 

 

  There was no foreign exchange gain or loss as the export bills are negotiated with 
the Agrani Bank Limited on the date of B/L received. 

    

  The ageing of the trade receivables shows that the receivables are considered 
good and subsequently realized in full. 

   
13. ADVANCE, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS: TK. 70,578,157 
 

Advance against Expenses 1,060,721  1,174,721 

Prepayments 4,250,892  1,408,443 
Advance Income Tax   13.(a) 64,837,460  30,580,740 

Bank Guarantee Margin 429,084  429,084 

             
 

  -------------
--------       -
---------------
---------------
--------   ----
------------- 

 --------------- 
 70,578,157  33,592,988 

 ========
=                

========
== 

 ========= 
 
 
 

   
13. (a) ADVANCE INCOME TAX: TK. 64,837,460 
 

Advance 40   

         Opening Balance    30,580,740  35,263,069 

         Add: Paid during the year   65,053,702  31,414,487 

   -------------    ---------------- 
 95,634,443     66,677,556 
         Less: Adjustment for the AY 2021-22 -     (36,096,816) 
         Less: Adjustment for the AY 2022-23 (30,796,983)  - 

  --------------    ---------------- 
          64,837,460  30,580,740 
 ========  ========= 
    

 Advance against expenses are adjusted regularly and considered good. 

 Prepayments and Advance Income Tax are made to statutory bodies and hence 

secured. 

 No amount was due by the Directors and other officers of the Company or by 

associated undertaking. 

  
14. OTHER RECEIVABLES: TK. 110,844,619 

Insurance Claim Receivable   16,254,727  16,254,727 
Cash Incentive Receivable 83,537,896  245,426,922 
FDR’s Interest Receivable 10,848,170  7,043,037 
PF Lapse (Employer’s Portion) 203,826  243,887 

 ----------------  ---------------- 
 110,844,619  268,968,573 
 =========  ========= 

  30.06.2023  30.06.2022 
    

Export Bills Receivable  82,333,352  44,826,338 
 =========  ======== 

The age analysis of trade receivables as on 30.06.2023 is shown below: 
Age analysis Taka  Taka 

0 to 30 days 82,333,352  41,830,958 
31 to 60 days -  - 
61 to 90 days -  2,995,380 

 ----------------  --------------- 
 82,333,352  44,826,338 
 =========  ======== 
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 30.06.2023  30.06.2022 

    

 
15. INVESTMENT IN FINANCIAL ASSETS: TK. 291,153,690 
 

FDRs with Dhaka Bank Ltd., Foreign Exchange Br., Dhaka 237,553,690   200,536,999 

FDRs with Eastern Bank Ltd., Principle Br., Dhaka 30,000,000  - 

FDRs with Agrani Bank Ltd., Agrabad Corporate Br., Chattogram 23,600,000    23,600,000 

      ---------------   ----------------- 
 291,153,690   224,136,999 

 ==========  ========== 

 FDR’s are made for more than 3 (three) months. 
 

16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: TK. 58,684,150 
 

Cash in Hand:    

Head Office 2,912  5,681 
Factory Office 56,639  64,256 

       59,551   69,937 

Cash at Bank with:    

Agrani Bank Ltd., ESA A/C, Agrabad Corporate Br., Chattogram 327,740  297,771 
Agrani Bank Ltd., FCY A/C, Agrabad Corporate Br., Chattogram 885,917  189,490 

Agrani Bank Ltd., CD A/C, Agrabad Corporate Br., Chattogram 56,000,000  - 

Agrani Bank Ltd., PLEDGE A/C, Agrabad Corporate Br., Chattogram 5,975  - 

Eastern Bank Ltd., SND A/C, Principal Branch, Dhaka 29,154  29,487 
The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Ltd., CD A/C, Dhaka 28,364  74,054 
The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Ltd., (CD-Div.A/C), Dhaka   1,235,105  2,466,553 
Dhaka Bank Ltd., OD A/C, Foreign Exchange Br., Dhaka 19,297  - 

Dhaka Bank Ltd., CD A/C, Foreign Exchange Br., Dhaka 93,048  93,263 

 58,624,599  3,150,617 
 58,684,150  3,220,554 

 

  Cash in hand was physically counted and verified at the year ended as on 30.06.2023. All Bank balances were 
reconciled and confirmed by bank statements. 

   

  Foreign currency Account balances in USD are given below which has converted in BDT. The Closing 
conversion rate of USD was Tk.107.00 on 30.06.2023 as compared to Tk. 92.40 on 30.06.2022. 

   In USD  In USD 
       Agrani Bank Ltd., FCY A/C, Agrabad Corporate Br., Chattogram 8,279.60  2,050.76 

 
 
 

  Insurance Claim was receivable from Insurance Company against deterioration of stock because of 
machinery break down. Appropriate claim has been lodged with the Insurance Company in 1997. The 
claim is under litigation and pending with the High Court Division. 

   
  Cash incentive receivable represents the amount receivable from Bank against cash incentive. The 

amount will be received from the Bangladesh Bank through Agrani Bank Limited. 
   
  The ageing of the Cash incentive receivable are maximum 06 (Six) months. 
  

  FDR’s interest receivable represents the provision of interest receivable on FDR’s up to 30.06.2023. 

   
  PF Lapse (Employer’s Portion) receivable represents the provision of PF Lapse receivable on (Employer’s 

Portion) up to 30.06.2023 as per Financial Reporting Act 2015. 
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 30.06.2023  30.06.2022 

 
17. SHARE CAPITAL: TK. 57,024,000 
 
       Authorized Capital: 
 

 15,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10/= each      150,000,000  150,000,000 
  =========  ========== 
 

Issued, Subscribed & Paid up Capital: 
 

   5,702,400 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10/= each 57,024,000  57,024,000 

  =========  ========= 

     
Allotment Date Types 

of Issue 
No. of 
Share 

Face value 
of Per 
Share 

Amount 
(BDT) 

Basis of 
allotment 

21st March 1979 during Incorporation Ordinary 100 100 10,000 Cash (by Bank) 

Allotted during the year 1979-80 Ordinary 21,900 100 2,190,000 Cash (by Bank) 

Allotted during the year 1981-82 Ordinary 22,000 100 2,200,000 IPO 

Allotted during the year 1985-86 Bonus 8,800 100 880,000 Bonus Share 

Allotted during the year 1989-90 Bonus 10,560 100 1,056,000 Bonus Share 

Allotted during the year 1993-94 Bonus 63,360 100 6,336,000 Bonus Share 

Allotted during the year 1994-95 Bonus 63,360 100 6,336,000 Bonus Share 

Allotted during the year 1996-97 Bonus 190,080 100 19,008,000 Bonus Share 

Allotted during the year 1996-97 Right 190,080 100 19,008,000 Right Share 

  570,240  57,024,000  

Split the share price  as on 13.11.2011  5,702,400 10 57,024,000 BSEC notification 

. 
   There was no preference share issued by the Company. 
 
 
Composition of Shareholdings (As on 30.06.2023):  
 
Sponsors & Directors                                                                    53.39%                       36.06%          
Institutions                                                                                      6.33%                          4.26%         
Public - Local                                                                                40.28%                        59.68%       
    100.00%    100.00%  
                                                                                                  =======                       ====== 
 
The distribution showing the number of shareholders and their shareholdings in 
percentages are as follows: 
 

No. of Share Holders Range Total Holdings In % 
 

3,950 Less than & equal 500 Shares 490,198 8.60 

824 501 to 5,000 Shares 1,281,356 22.47 

47 5,001 to 10,000 Shares 322,356 5.65 

17 10,001 to 20,000 Shares 224,420 3.94 

5 20,001 to 30,000 Shares 129,950 2.28 

0 30,001 to 40,000 Shares - - 

1 40,001 to 50,000 Shares 50,000 0.88 

2 50,001 to 100,000 Shares 171,670 3.01 
2 100,001 to 200,000 Shares 325,490 5.71 

2 Over 200,000 Shares 2,706,960 47.47 

----------  ---------------- ---------- 
4,850  5,702,400 100.00 

=====  ======== ===== 
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   30.06.2023  30.06.2022 

                 
18.  SHARE PREMIUM: TK. 209,088,000    
  209,088,000  209,088,000 
  ==========  ========== 
                                                                    

 This represents premium of Tk. 1,100 per Share of 190,080 Right Shares of Tk. 100 each. 
 
19. RESERVE AND SURPLUS: TK. 245,171,380 
 

 

 Reserve for Re-investment represents Tax Holiday Reserve made up to the Tax Holiday 
period of the Company as per requirements of the Income Tax Ordinance, 1984 and the 
capital gain represents the difference between sale proceeds less face value of Shares of 
Amam Sea Food Industries Limited in 2002-03. The reserve and surplus is utilized in the 
Company’s business. 

 
 

20. FAIR VALUATION SURPLUS OF INVESTMENTS: TK. 265,405,465 
 

 Opening Balance  247,684,609   226,854,109 

 Adjustment for fair valuation surplus/(deficit) during the year        19,689,840  23,145,000 
 Less: Deferred Tax @10%         (1,968,984)  (2,314,500) 

 Fair valuation surplus/(deficit) during the year   17,720,856  20,830,500 
    -----------------  ----------------- 
    265,405,465  247,684,609 
    ==========  ========== 

 

 Fair valuation surplus/(deficit) of investments represents the difference between market 
value of the listed Company’s shares (Apex Spinning & Knitting Mills Limited and Apex 
Weaving & Finishing Mills Limited) on the closing date and the cost price after adjustment 
of deferred tax. 

 
 

21. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES: TK. 39,488,682 
 

(a) Deferred tax liabilities on Depreciable Assets      (562,255)                      57,377                
(b) Deferred tax liabilities on foreign currency translation gain/(loss)        (2,748)  7,169 
(c) Deferred tax liabilities on FDRs Interest Receivable 2,169,634   1,408,607 
(d) Deferred tax liabilities on PF Lapse (Employer’s Portion) Receivable 40,765  48,777 
(e) Deferred tax liabilities on Cash Incentive Receivable 8,353,790  24,542,692 
(f)  Deferred tax liabilities on Fair valuation surplus of Investments 29,489,496   27,520,512 

 39,488,682    53,585,135 
   =========  ========= 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 The provision for deferred tax (expenses)/income is made to pay/adjust future income tax 
liability/ (asset) due to accumulated temporary differences. This has been raised mainly for 
fair valuation of Investments as per IAS 12. The details are given below: 

 

This represents the following:    

    

Reserve for Re-investment 51,162,905  51,162,905 

Retained Earnings 193,401,475  153,974,370 

Capital Gain 607,000  607,000 

 -----------------  ---------------- 
 245,171,380  205,744,275 

 ==========  ========= 
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30.06.2023 

  
30.06.2022 

     

a) Book Value of Depreciable Assets 76,111,905  77,439,208 

 Tax base of Depreciable Assets 80,797,363  76,865,434 

 Net Taxable Temporary Difference (4,685,457)  573,774 

 Effective Tax Rate 12.00%  10.00% 

 Closing Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liabilities arising from 
depreciable  assets 

  (562,255)    57,377 

 Opening Deferred Tax Balance 57,377  241,957 

 Deferred Tax (Expenses)/Income 619,632  184,579 

     

b) Foreign currency translation gain/(loss) (unrealized) (13,740)            35,844 

 Effective Tax Rate 20.00%  20.00% 

 Closing Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liabilities arising from    

 unrealized Foreign currency translation gain/(loss) (2,748)  7,169 

 Opening Deferred Tax Balance 7,169  (48) 

 Deferred Tax (Expenses)/Income             9,917           (7,217) 

     

c) Unrealized Interest on FDRs 10,848,170  
 

7,043,037 

 
Effective Tax Rate 20.00% 

 
20.00% 

 

Closing Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liabilities arising from 
unrealized FDRs Interest 2,169,634 

 
1,408,607 

 
Opening Deferred Tax Balance  1,408,607  

 
 1,855,713 

 
Deferred Tax (Expenses) / Income (761,027) 

 
 447,106 

     

d) PF Lapse (Employer’s Portion) Receivable 203,826  

 

243,887 

 Effective Tax Rate 20.00%  20.00% 

 
Closing Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liabilities arising from PF 
Lapse (Employer’s Portion) Receivable 

40,765 
 

48,777 

 Opening Deferred Tax Balance 48,777   52,781 

 Deferred Tax (Expenses) / Income 8,013  4,004 

     

e) Cash Incentive Receivable 83,537,896  

 

245,426,922 

 
Effective Tax Rate 10.00% 

 
10.00% 

 

Closing Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liabilities arising from 
Cash Incentive Receivable 

8,353,790 

 

24,542,692 

 
Opening Deferred Tax Balance 24,542,692  

 
6,744,010 

 

Deferred Tax (Expenses) / Income 16,188,903  (17,798,682) 

 
Deferred Tax (Expenses) / Income (a+b+c+d+e) 16,065,438 

 
(17,170,210) 

  

 ======== 

 

 ======== 

f) Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liabilities arising from Other    
 Comprehensive Income:    
 Gains on hedging instruments in cash flow hedges -  - 
 Tax for (Losses)/gains on available for sale investments 29,489,496  27,520,512 

 Revaluation of property -  - 
 Actuarial gain on defined benefit pension schemes -  - 
 Foreign exchange gain for foreign operation -  - 
   --------------   -------------- 
 Closing Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liabilities arising from    
 investments 29,489,496    27,520,512 

 Opening Deferred Tax Balance 27,520,512  25,206,012 

 Deferred Tax (Expenses)/Income arising from investments (1,968,984)  (2,314,500) 

  ---------------  --------------- 
 Total Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liabilities (a+b+c+d+e+f) 39,488,682  53,585,135 

  ========  ======== 
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                                                                                                 30.06.2023         30.06.2022 

                                                                                              
22. WORKING CAPITAL LOAN (SECURED): TK. 1,690,879 

 

 The Working Capital Loan was taken from Agrani Bank Limited, Agrabad Corporate 
Branch, Jahan Building, Agrabad C/A, Chattogram, which is fully secured against 1st charge 
on Land, Building, Plant & Machinery and all other Assets of the Company and Pledge of 
Finished Goods 

 

 The Company has Cash Credit facilities of Tk. 78.00 Crore (Hypothecation Tk. 18.00 
Crore & Pledge of finished goods Tk. 60.00 Crore) which has been fully availed. Apart 
from this, the Company has no such other credit facilities. The Loan bears interest @ 
7.00% p.a. from 01.07.2022 to 31.03.2023 & @ 8.04% p.a. from 01.04.2023 to 
30.06.2023. 

 
23. LONG TERM LOAN-CURRENT MATURITY:  
 

 

 
24. SHORT TERM LOAN:  

 

Dhaka Bank Limited -    7,216,806 
  ---------------  ---------------- 
  -  7,216,806 
  =========  ========= 

 

  Loan from Dhaka Bank Limited, Foreign Exchange Branch, Dhaka against lien on 
FDRs. The Loan limit with Dhaka Bank Limited is Tk. 100.00 million. 

 
 
25. TRADE PAYABLES: TK. 258,239,113 

 

Shrimp Purchased 258,239,113  56,489,907 
  ---------------

----------------
--- 

 ---------------- 
 258,239,113  56,489,907 

 =========  ========= 
 

   

  Shrimps are purchased directly from the Shrimps cultivators i.e. the owner of the Gher and 
price are fixed after bargaining on the respective day of the purchase. All trade payables 
were paid in full subsequently. 

  
 
 
 

 

 
CC (Hypo) from Agrani Bank Limited, Agrabad Corporate Branch, 
Chattogram 

1,690,879  138,950,829 

 
CC (Pledge) from Agrani Bank Ltd., Agrabad Corporate Branch, 
Chattogram 

-  173,919,652 

   ----------------  ---------------- 
  1,690,879  312,870,481 
                

 
 
 
 
 

=========  ========== 

 

 Stimulus Salary Loan -  2,087,880 
  --------------  -------------- 

  -  2,087,880 

  ========  ======== 



APEX FOODS LIMITED                                                                     Annual Report 2022-23 

65 

 

 
 30.06.2023   30.06.2022 
    

 

26. OTHER PAYABLES: TK. 22,895,905 

 
 

 All other payables have been fully paid subsequently except contribution to PPF & WF 
and Audit Fees. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Advance against export 5,550,666 

 
35,085,523 

 
Audit Fees (including VAT) 443,000 

 
402,500 

 
Chemicals 64,000 

 
73,500 

 
Clearing & Forwarding  244,607 

 
244,261 

 
Consumable Stores & Spares 113,637 

 
50,099 

 
Contribution to PPF & WPPF 4,980,142 

 
3,864,176 

 
Contribution to Provident Fund - 

 
37,898 

 
Directors’ Remuneration 800,000 

 
400,000 

 
Electricity & WASA Charges  - 

 
57,611 

 
Factory Building 250,477 

 
9,880 

 
Factory Equipments  32,300 

 
- 

 
Ice  24,061 

 
518,696 

 
Interest Payable on Overdraft - 

 
152,555 

 Legal & Professional Fees -  4,600 
 License & Renewals -  30,326 
 Laboratory Expenses -  3,240 

 
Newspaper & Periodicals - 

 
266 

 
Ocean Freight  1,278,102 

 
2,016,175 

 
Office Maintenance 1,898 

 
5,340 

 
Packing Materials  2,243,368 

 
4,499,022 

 
Power, Fuel and Water 357,580 

 
50,790 

 Postage & Stamps 6,539  2,617 

 
Printing & Stationery 2,100 

 
52,485 

 
Corporate Expenses & Others 49,337 

 
- 

 
Repairs (Factory Building) 26,930 

 
- 

 
Repairs (Machinery & Equipment) 691,531 

 
275,479 

 
Salaries & Allowances 2,693,646 

 
2,627,475 

 Sanitation Expenses -  15,240 

 
Staff Income Tax 78,284 

 
67,767 

 
Staff Welfare Expenses  99,850 

 
67,500 

 
Survey Fees & Inspection 9,000 

 
10,000 

 
Telephone, Telex & Fax 6,023 

 
14,502 

 
T.A & Conveyance - 

 
426,748 

 
TDS Payable to Govt. 8,687 

 
5,448 

 
Uniform & Liveries 44,229 

 
44,028 

 
Wages & Salaries  2,776,440 

 
4,900,138 

 Transportation Expenses -  47,500 
 VAT Payable to Govt. 19,471  22,495 

  ---------------  --------------- 

  
22,895,905 

 
56,085,880 

  
========= 

 
========= 
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     30.06.2023     30.06.2022 
 
27. CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES: TK. 64,776,310         
      

 
Opening Balance         30,796,983     36,096,816 

 Add: Current year tax         64,776,310     30,796,983 

     -----------------   ----------------- 
   95,573,293     66,893,799 

 Less: Adjustment against assessment year 2021-22  -  (36,096,816) 

 Less: Adjustment against assessment year 2022-23  (30,796,983)  - 

     -----------------    ----------------
-    64,776,310       

36,096,816 
 30,796,983       

30,796,983            ==========  =========     
=========       

 This represents the tax liability up to the assessment year 2022-23. Assessments 
have been completed up to income year 2021-22 and assessment figures 
(Liability/Advance) has been adjusted with the Accounts. 

      
      
28. UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND ACCOUNT: TK. 1,198,780 
 
 

     
 Unclaimed Dividend     

 Opening Balance            1,309,688  11,918,571 

 Add: Dividend approved at AGM         11,404,800          11,404,800 

   12,714,488          23,323,371 

 Less: Paid during the year up to 30.06.2023      (11,515,708)      (22,013,683) 

   -----------------  ----------------- 

             1,198,780            1,309,688 

   ==========  ========= 
      

 Unclaimed dividend represents the dividend warrants of Tk.1,198,780 not presented 
to bank by the shareholders within June 30, 2023. The details of unclaimed dividend 
as on 30 June 2023 is as under: 

      
 Year                     Taka              Taka 

 2018-19           -            460,213.18 

 2019-20  369,822.73  379,014.50 

 2020-21  464,935.00  470,460.00 

 2021-22  364,022.40         - 

   -------------------  ------------------- 

 
       1,198,780.13       1,309,687.68 

      
 According to the Directive (No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2021-386/03) dated January 14, 

2021, of Bangladesdh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) para 3 (Vii) 
regarding the details information of unclaimed dividend shall report in the statement 
of Financial Position as separate line, so we have reported in the Statement of 
financial position as separate line item “ Unclaimed Dividend Account”. 

      

 According to the BSEC’s letter No. SEC/SRMIC/165-2020/131 dated March 31, 2022 
regarding the transfer of Unclaimed Dividend along with prescribed dividend 
distribution compliance report upto 2018-2019. Accordingly, we have transferred the 
Unclaimed Dividend amount Tk.4,57,696.20 for the above periods to the “Capital 
Market Stabilization Fund’ (CMSF) Vide Cheque - 0010076, dated 14 June 2023 of 
The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (HSBC). 
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                                                                                             2022-2023                  2021-2022 
 

 

29. REVENUE: TK. 2,419,769,848 

 
 Qty. in Kg US$    
Export of Shrimps 1,919,868.00 23,995,828.00 2,419,769,848  3,512,949,969 
 1,919,868.00 23,995,828.00 2,419,769,848  3,512,949,969 
 ========= ========= ===========  =========== 
      

 Country wise break up of the Export for the year 2022-2023: 
 

 

 
Name of the Countries Quantity  USD 

  In KG   
 
 
 
 

 USA 821,916.00  11,540,333.00 

 Netherlands 363,808.00  4,374,268.00 

 Russia 270,800.00  2,667,110.00 

 Belgium 181,607.00  2,540,984.00 

 Germany 121,900.00  1,473,695.00 

 UK 54,870.00  799,950.00 

 Ukraine 82,800.00  334,150.00 

 
Canada 11,907.00  152,250.00 

 Japan 10,260.00  113,088.00 
  ------------------  -------------------- 

 
 1,919,868.00  23,995,828.00 

  

 
 
 

30. COST OF GOODS SOLD: TK.  2,152,795,726 

31. COST OF PRODUCTION: TK. 2,024,534,640 

 

 

 Cash incentive adjusted with the raw materials purchase. 
 
 

 
 

      

 Qty. in Kg. Notes    

Opening Stock of Finished Goods 564,988  248,744,344 
 491,090,651 

Add: Cost of Production 1,623,277 31 2,024,534,640  2,893,005,368 
 2,188,265  2,273,278,984  3,384,096,019 
Less: Closing Stock of Finished  (268,397)  (120,483,258) 

 (248,744,344) 

Goods 1,919,868  --------------------  -------------------- 
 ========  2,152,795,726  3,135,351,675 
   ===========  =========== 

      

 Qty. in Kg. Notes    

      

Shrimp Purchased 2,334,354  1,832,391,976 
 2,683,202,222 

Packing Materials, Chemicals, Ice and 
Ingredients consumed 

32 72,006,876  95,989,477 

Direct Labor   28,558,670 
 35,177,452 

Factory Overhead  33 91,577,118  78,636,217 

   -------------------  ------------------- 
   2,024,534,640  2,893,005,368 
   ===========  =========== 
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        2022-2023       2021-2022 
 

32. PACKING MATERIALS, CHEMICALS, ICE & INGREDIENTS CONSUMED: TK. 72,006,876 
 

 (a) Opening Balance (Packing Materials)     3,777,339  5,079,375 

 Add: Packing Materials Purchase 62,421,394   79,146,297 

  ---------------  --------------- 

    66,198,733       84,225,672 

 Less: Packing Materials in hand (3,746,726)  (3,777,339) 
  ---------------  --------------- 

  62,452,007  80,448,333 
                                                  

 (b) Opening balance (Chemical & Ingredients) 8,819,800  4,438,748 

 Add: Chemicals, Ice and Ingredients Purchase 5,630,385  19,922,196 

  ---------------  --------------- 

  14,450,185  24,360,944 

 Less: Chemical and Ingredients in hand  (4,895,316)  (8,819,800) 

  --------------  -------------- 

  9,554,869  15,541,144 

 Total (a+b) 72,006,876  95,989,477 

  =========  ========= 

 
 
33. FACTORY OVERHEAD: TK. 91,577,118 
 

 Wages & Salaries   20,764,274     26,276,195  

 Bonus to Workers' 741,553  468,395 

 Power, Fuel & Water 37,441,868  25,802,063 

 Consumable Stores & Spares 1,528,905  1,086,807 

 Insurance premium 3,305,010  3,690,996 

 Repair & Maintenance 12,532,539  7,133,707 

 Carriage Inward 14,600  17,890 

 Depreciation 15,248,369  14,160,164 

  --------------  -------------- 
  91,577,118   78,636,217  
  =========  ========= 
 
 
 

34. OTHER OPERATING INCOME / (LOSS): TK. 198,480 
 

 Foreign Exchange Gain / (Loss) from operation/ Transaction 212,220  - 

 Foreign Currency Translation Gain / (Loss) (13,740)  35,844 

  198,480  35,844 
    ======  ====== 

      
      

 
Foreign currency translation gain / (loss) represents the difference between the closing 
conversion rate and the ledger conversion rate of FCY Account as on 30.06.2023. 
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      2022-2023      2021-2022 
 

35. ADMINISTRATIVE AND SELLING OVERHEAD: TK. 160,994,192 

 

 

 Directors’ Remuneration paid to the Directors for their full time service rendered are: 
       a) Mr. Zafar Ahmed -  2,400,000 
       b) Mrs. Shawkat Ara Ahmed 800,000  - 
       c) Mr. Ashim Kumar Barua  4,200,000  4,200,000 
       d) Mr. Kazi Faruq Kader  600,000  600,000 
  ---------------  --------------- 
  5,600,000  7,200,000 
     

 Audit Fee is fixed by the Shareholders in the Annual General Meeting and does not 
include any other remuneration to Auditors. 

 Sales promotion expenses include cost of samples and courier cost for distribution of 
free samples to the buyers. 

 There are 11 (Eleven) Board Meetings held during the year. 

 
Advertisement        217,352               

 

       263,903                              

 
Audit Fees (Including VAT) 402,500 

 
  402,500 

 
Board Meeting Fees (Including VAT) 33,550 

 
28,050 

 
Bonus to Staff 6,075,333 

 
3,088,503 

 
Contribution to Provident Fund 2,268,934 

 
2,225,216 

 
Depreciation on Tangible Assets  921,331 

 
787,742 

 Depreciation on Right of Use (ROU) Assets -  1,187,195 

 
Directors’ Remuneration 5,600,000 

 
7,200,000 

 
Donation & Subscription 4,200 

 
4,202 

 
Electricity & WASA Charges  680,604 

 
235,696 

 
Entertainment 594,220 

 
577,793 

 
Freight, Forwarding & Export Expenses 76,186,209 

 
196,484,456 

 
General Fees & Charges 399,700 

 
36,500 

 
Guest House Expenses 339,105 

 
 

 
497,215 

 
Laboratory Expenses 99,270 

 
82,892 

 
Laboratory Testing Expenses 6,713,898 

 
10,232,260 

 
Legal & Professional Fees 557,965 

  
66,350 

 
License & Renewals 742,054 

 
908,630 

 
Medical Expenses 7,721 

 
15,516 

 
Membership Subscription 93,800 

 
10,000 

 
Newspaper & Periodicals 1,627 

 
3,062 

 
Office Maintenance 7,160 

  
376,580 

 
Postage & Stamp 306,795 

  
383,860 

 
Printing & Stationery 704,824 

 
693,786 

 Rent, Rates & Taxes 259,350  - 

 
Corporate Expenses & Others 1,678,213 

 
152,035 

 VAT on Office Rent -  216,020 

 
Salaries & Allowances 32,048,578 

 
29,773,749 

 
Sales Commission 3,955,921 

  
1,428,467 

 
Sales Promotion Expenses 13,761,189 

 
8,145,597 

 
Sanitation Expenses 315,843 

 
324,370 

 
Staff Fooding 588,411 

 
719,374 

 
Staff Welfare Expenses 2,357,081 

 
1,102,712 

 
T.A & Conveyance 834,862 

 
877,868 

 
Telephone, Telex & Fax 482,179 

 
439,084 

 
Uniform & Liveries 601,343 

 
494,638 

 
Transportation Expenses 1,153,071 

 
1,346,343 

  ------------------  ----------------
-- 

  
160,994,192 

 
270,812,163 

  
========== 

 

=========
= 
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                                                                                                      2022-2023        2021-2022 
36. FINANCE & OTHER INCOME: Tk. 22,156,972 

Dividend Income: 
  

 Dividend from Apex Spinning & Knitting Mills Ltd.  4,526,400  4,526,400 
 Dividend from CDBL 1,427,952  1,427,952 

  5,954,352  5,954,352 

 Interest Income on FDRs 15,998,519  10,955,894 
 Interest Income on SND Account 275  306 
 PF Lapse (Employer’s Portion) 203,826  243,887 

  22,156,972  17,154,439 
  ========  ======== 
 
37. FINANCIAL EXPENSES: TK. 23,752,400  

 Interest 15,608,693               32,839,157              
 Charges 8,143,707  9,956,796 
 Interest expenses on Lease Liability -  32,774 

  23,752,400  42,828,727 
  ========  ======== 

  
38. PROVISION FOR CONTRIBUTION TO PPF & WF: TK. (4,980,142)  (3,864,176) 

 
 This represents 5% of the net profit after charging such contribution provided as per provisions of 

the Bangladesh Labor Act, 2006 (Amended 2013 & 2017) and Bangladesh Labor Rules, 2015 
and is payable to workers’ as defined in the said Act. 

  
39. TAX EXPENSES: 

 
   

 A) CURRENT TAX: TK. 64,776,310    
 Current tax consists the higher of minimum tax U/S 163 (2ka, kha), 163 (5-kh-uho) considering 

below a, b, c ie a) tax on income basis b) TDS on these income U/S 163 (2 ka, kha) & c) tax on all 
gross received U/S-163 (5-kh-e) and also others income realized during the period from 1st July 
2022 to 30th June 2023. Details as follows: 

 
 Calculation of Current tax:    
a) Tax on Income basis:     
i) Tax on Business profit:      
 Profit before tax    99,602,840  77,283,511 
 Other Operating (Income) / Loss from translation  13,740    (35,844) 
 Less: Finance & Other Income   (22,156,972)  (17,154,439) 
 Net Operating Profit/(Loss)  77,459,608  60,093,228 
      
 Tax Rate  12%  12% 
 Tax on Business Profit   9,295,153  7,211,187 
      
ii) Tax on Other Income:      

x) Tax on Dividend Income @ 20%  1,190,870  - 
y) Tax on Cash Incentive realized @ 10%**  37,568,730  - 
z) Tax on Finance Income (FDRs & Savings Interest) @ 20%)  2,438,732  - 
   41,198,332  - 
 Total a (i+ii)  50,493,484  7,211,187 

 **as per SRO # 253-law / income tax-09/23 dated 23.08.23     
b) TDS U/S-163 (2-ka, kha)     

i) TDS on export proceeds @ 1.00%   23,529,201  18,675,941 
ii) TDS on Dividend Income @ 20.00%  1,190,870  1,190,870 
iii) TDS on Cash Incentive (realized amount) @ 10.00%  37,568,730  8,451,100 
iv) TDS on Finance Income (realized amount) @20.00%  1,822,381  2,432,156 
 

 
    64,111,182 

 
30,750,067 
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  2022-2023  2021-2022 
     
c) Tax on gross received U/S-163 (5-kh-uho)      %    

 i) Realized from Revenue (0.60%/20%*12%)  0.36  8,469,821  13,292,617 
 ii) Realized from other operating Income         0.36  764  - 
 iii) Realized from Cash Incentive                     0.60  2,254,124  507,066 
 iv) Realized from Dividend Income                  0.60  35,726  35,726 
 v) Realized from finance & Other Income        0.60  73,162  72,965 
 vi) Realized from Other Income-PF Lapse       0.60  1,463  1,407 

   10,835,060   13,909,781  
      
 So, Current tax     

 i) Tax on Business Profit–Higher of above a-i,b-i & c-i  23,529,201   18,675,941 
 ii)Tax on Dividend Income  1,190,870  1,190,870 
 iii) Tax on Cash Incentive (refer above SRO)  37,568,730  8,451,100 
 iv) Tax on Finance Income ( Realized) Higher of a-ii-z  2,438,732  2,432,156 
 v) Realized from Other Income-PF Lapse (Realized)        48,777  46,916 

   64,776,310  30,796,983 
      
 Effective tax rate= (Tax expenses / Profit before tax) 48.97%        62.07% 
 
 

39. B) UNDER PROVISION OF TAX: TK.   60,064 
 

- 
  

    

  Under provision of tax arising from the adjustment between advance tax paid & tax 
provision made during the year 2020-2021 because of assessment completing the said 
income year 2020-2021. 

  
    

39. C) DEFERRED TAX EXPENSES / (INCOME): TK.   16,065,438 
 

(17,170,210) 
  

    

  Current tax represents estimated Income Tax for the year from 1st July 2022 to 30th June 
2023. As the Company is a Publicly Traded Company, as per the Income Tax Act, 2023 
and the Company is also a 100% export oriented Sea Food Processing Industry, the tax 
rate of the Company is 20%. Tax provision has been made on the basis of the highest of 
10% (i.e. tax rate is 20% on business profit) or tax deducted at source @ 1% or tax on 
gross receipts @ 0.60% and provision has been made accordingly. However, the tax 
provision has been made @ 20% on interest income & PF lapse receivable and 20% on 
dividend income as per provision of the Income Tax Act, 2023. 

  
    

40. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS) – DISCLOSURE UNDER  IAS 33 “EARNINGS  PER  SHARE”: 
  

Earnings attributable to Ordinary Shareholders 
 Basic EPS =  ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
                     Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year 

2022-23 
 

  50,831,905    29,316,318   

Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS)    = ----------------- = 8.91  --------------- = 5.14 
  5,702,400    5,702,400   

  Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares outstanding during the year represents the 
number of Ordinary Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year plus the number of shares 
issued during the year multiplied by a time weighting factor. The time weighting factor is the 
number of days the specific number of shares are outstanding as a proportion of the total 
number of days in the period. 

  

  There was significant variance occurs between 2021-2022 & 2022-2023 performance as the 
EPS of 2021-2022 was Tk. 5.14 and it became Tk. 8.91 on 2022-2023 due to strong exchange 
rate support, ocean freight & financial expenses decreased substantially & finance & other 
income increased resulted in better profitability. However, this scenario is changeable time to 
time depending on different issues. 
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                                                                                           2022-2023        2021-2022 
 

41. NET ASSETS VALUE (NAV) PER SHARE: 

 
           Net Assets (Total Assets – Total Liabilities) 

 NAV Per Share =  -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

       Number of ordinary shares outstanding 

 
 

  776,688,845    719,540,884   
Net Assets Value (NAV) Per Share = ----------------- = 136.20  ----------------- = 126.18 
  5,702,400    5,702,400   
 

  Net Assets Value (NAV) per share is Tk. 136.20 as on 30.06.2023 but it was Tk. 126.18 as on 
30.06.2022. The main reason for increasing NAV due to increase in reserve & surplus as well 
as share price of Investments.  

 
 

42. NET OPERATING CASH FLOWS  PER SHARE (NOCFPS): 
  
 Net Operating Cash Flows 

 NOCFPS           =  --------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 Number of ordinary shares outstanding 

 
 

  466,677,032    354,354,732   
Net Operating Cash Flows  = ----------------- = 81.84  ----------------- = 62.14 
Per Share (NOCFPS)  5,702,400    5,702,400   

 
 

  There was significant variance in net operating cash flows as compared to the last year. The 
Net Operating Cash Flows per Share is Tk. 81.84 but it was Tk.62.14 in 2021-22 which is 
mainly for decrease in payment for cost & expenses, decrease in other receivables during the 
year 2022-2023 as compared to last year. However, this scenario is changeable time to time 
depending on different issues. 

 

  44.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 
 There are one related party (inter Company) transactions during the year under review. 

 Transaction with key management personnel: 
 
Name Relationship Nature Transaction Opening 

Balance 
Transaction 

during the period 
Closing 
Balance 

1. Mr. Zahur Ahmed PhD Director Revenue 
Expenditure 

*Office rent - - - 

2. Mrs. Shawkat Ara Ahmed Director 

3. Mr. Shahriar Ahmed Director 

4. Mr. Mahir Ahmed Family member of 
Director 5. Mr. Eifaz Ahmed 

6. Matex Bangladesh Limited Common 
Directorship  

Capital 
Expenditure 

**To buy a 
Car 

- 1,406,888/- Nil 

*The Directors & their family members have provided a rent-free office space for business transaction for the 
company as per agreement. However, the total rental spaces as mentioned in the agreement is approximately 
79,444.10 sft for 11 sister concerns of the Directors of the company which is located at Shanta Sky Mark (Level 8 
to 13), Plot # 18, Block # CWS(A), Gulshan Avenue, Gulshan, Dhaka-1212. Therefore, the value of the related 
party transaction is nil. 

 
**Tk.1,406,888.00 was given to Matex Bangladesh Limited during the year to buy a car on behalf of the company. 
Closing Balance is nil. 

43. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD:  

a) Proposed Dividend:  
 The Board of Directors has recommended cash Dividend of Tk. 2.00/- per Share for the 

financial year 2022-23 at the Board Meeting held on October 03, 2023. The total amount of 
Dividend is TK.11,404,800/-. 

   
b) Other Significant Events:  
 There is no other significant event that has occurred between the Statement of Financial 

Position date and the date when the financial statements were authorized for issue by the 
Board of Directors of the Company. 
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                                                                                            2022-2023                  2021-2022 
 

 The Company is now paying Remuneration to the 03 (three) Directors who are rendering full 
time service to the Company and in addition to that there is nothing paid to them (Note No. 35 
for details).  

 

 The Company operates a contributory provident fund which is administrates by the Board of 
Trustee. The Company has also a Group Insurance Scheme. The Company pays its monthly 
contribution for the Key Management to the Provident Fund Trust and the Company has no 
further liability. Group insurance premium is paid to the Insurance Company once in a year 
and if there is any claim that will be entertained by the Insurance Company for the Key 
Management and the Company has no liability. In addition to that there is nothing paid to them 
except salaries and allowances. 

 
45. GENERAL:    

     
(a) Production capacity (Quantity in M/T):    
     
 Installed Capacity         7,200 %         7,200 % 

 Actual Capacity utilized 1,623 22.54 2,797 38.85 

  ---------  ---------  

 Variation 5,577  4,403  
  =====  =====  

 

  It is a seasonal business, shrimps season remains for only about 6 (six) months 
(May to October) in a year. The Company was unable to achieve the optimum 
capacity due to non-availability of adequate shrimps throughout the year. 

 
(b) Production (Quantity in Kg):    
     
 Shrimps 1,623,277  2,797,267 
  --------------  -------------- 
  1,623,277  2,797,267 
  ========  ======== 

 
(c) Export (Quantity in Kg):    
 Shrimps 1,919,868  2,952,730 
  -------------  ------------- 
  1,919,868  2,952,730 
  ========  ======== 

 
(d) Consumption (Value in Taka):   2022-2023 
     

 Items Value  Consumption 
% 

 Local Shrimps 1,832,391,976  96.22 
 Local Packing Materials, Chemicals, Ice &  72,006,876  3.78 

 Ingredients    

 
(e) Salaries & Wages:    
  No. of Employees  Taka 
 Up to Tk.  5,000.00 per month -  - 
 Above Tk. 5,000.00 per month 235  61,898,672 
  -------  ---------------- 
  235  61,898,672 
  ====  ========= 
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2022-2023 

 

 
 
 

46. PAYMENTS /PERQUISITES TO DIRECTORS/OFFICERS (KEY MANAGEMENT): 

     
 The aggregate amounts paid / provided during the year in respect of Directors and 

Officers of the Company as defined in the Securities and Exchange Commission Rules, 
1987 are disclosed below: 

  
 
 
 

  Taka 

  Directors  Officers 
     
 Board Meeting Fees 33,550  - 
 Salaries and Allowances 5,600,000  34,118,212 
 Contribution to Provident Fund -  1,999,547 
 Bonus -  4,657,160 
 Perquisites -  12,255,343 

 

47. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE COMMITMENT: 

     
  There was no capital expenditure contracted or incurred or provided for as on 30th 

June 2023. 

     
  There was no material capital expenditure authorized by the Board or contracted for 

as on 30th June 2023. 
 
 

48. CONTINGENT LIABILITY: 

  There is Tk. 1.72 million as Bank guarantee for which the Company is contingently 
liable as on 30th June 2023. 
 
 

 

   49.   DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW: 
  

  No amount of money was spent by the Company for compensating any member of the 
Board for special service rendered except as stated above. 

    

  There was no bank guarantee issued by the company on behalf of the directors. 

  

  There was no brokerage paid against sales during the year 2022-23. 

  

  There was no expense on account of miscellaneous/general expenses. 

  

  There was no claim against the Company that has not been acknowledged as debt on 
30th June 2023. 

  

  There was no credit facility available to the Company under any contract or availed of 
as on 30th June 2023 other than trade credit available in the ordinary course of 
business. 

  

  There was no expense incurred in foreign exchange on account of Royalty, Technical 
Experts, Professional and Advisory Fee, Interest, Brokerage etc. 
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  ANNEXURE-1 
 
 
Reconciliation of net profit with cash flows from operating activities: 
   
Reconciliation of net income or net profit with cash flows from operating activities making 
adjustment for non-cash items, for non-operating items and for the net changes in operating 
accruals has been disclosed as per BSEC notification no: BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-
158/208/Admin/81 dated 20 June, 2018 
  Amount in BDT 
 

  2022-2023  2021-2022 
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIING ACTIVITIES:    
Net Profit after tax Expenses 50,831,905  29,316,318 

Add: Depreciation on tangible assets  16,169,700  16,135,102 
Less: Effect of foreign currency translation (gain) / loss 13,740  (35,844) 
Less: Finance & other income during the year (21,952,871)  (16,910,246) 
Add: Interest paid during the year 15,608,693  32,871,931 
Add: Tax Expenses 48,770,936  47,967,193 
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 132,216,183  239,267,291 
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables  (37,507,014)  179,443,526 
(Increase)/Decrease in Advance, Deposits & Pre-payments (2,728,449)  2,015,422 
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Receivables 161,929,087  (177,996,128) 
Income tax paid during the year (65,113,766)  (31,414,487) 
(Increase)/Decrease in Security deposits  -  - 
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables  201,749,206  18,418,708 
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Payables  (33,310,317)  15,275,948 
 -----------------  ----------------- 
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 466,677,032  354,354,732 
  ==========  ========== 
RECONCILIATION:    
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities-
Indirect method: 

        
466,677,032 

         
354,354,732 

     
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities-
Direct method: 466,677,032  354,354,732 
  ----------------  ------------------ 

Differences -   - 
  =========  ========== 

 
 

 

 




